
   

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 
AGENDA 
Council Chambers 
Monday, April 27, 2020 
 

1. Call to Order: 
 

2. Delegations:   Ben Campbell, KPMG re 2019 Financials (via Skype) 

     

3. Notice of New Business: 
Mayor’s List 
Councillors Additions: 
CAO’s Additions: 
 

4. Adoption of Agenda by Consensus: 
 

5. Declaration of Conflict of Interest: 

  

6. Adoption of Minutes: 
 M1 April 14, 2020 Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 
    

7. Business Arising from the Minutes:   

     

8.  Public Hearing: 
 

   

9. Staff Reports   
 SR1 

SR2 
 
SR3 
SR4 
SR5 
SR6 
 
SR7 
SR8 
SR9 
SR10 
SR11 

Financial Statements – 2019 (via Skype with KPMG) 
Development Variance Permit – Sign 
– Lucas Subdivision 
Manufactured Home Park – Rezoning 
Community Hall Leases 
Swimming Pool Operation – 2020 Season 
Saulteau First Nations – Letter of Support re Land 
Transfer 
Q1 2020 Quarterly Update 
CAO – Monthly Update 
Corporate – Monthly Update 
Public Works – Monthly Update 
Protective Services – Monthly Update 

 Page 6 
Page 38 
 
Page 49 
Page 70 
Page 88 
Page 90 
 
Page 93 
Page 105 
Page 106 
Page 107 
Page 111 
 

10. Committee Meeting Reports: 
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11. Bylaws: 
B1  
 
B2  

 
Bylaw No. 917, 2020 – Five Year Financial Plan 
(2020 – 2024) 
Bylaw No. 918, 2020 – Tax Rates 2020  

 
Page 113 
 
Page 148 
 

12. Correspondence:  

 C1 
 
 
 
C2 
 
 

Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing, 
Ministry of Finance - New COVID19 
Supports 
 
Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing - 
Municipal Campsites 
 

 Page 152 
 
 
 
Page 158 
 
 

13. Reports by Mayor & Council on Meetings and Liaison Responsibilities: 

     

14. Old Business: 
 

15. New Business:   

     

16. Public Inquiries:  

    

17. In-Camera Session  

    

18. Adjournment  



SR   

 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
April 14, 2020 

6:00 P.M. 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Present: Mayor Dave Heiberg 
Councillor Mattias Gibbs 
Councillor Pat Markin 
Councillor Valerie Paice 
Councillor Travous Quibell 
Councillor Leigh Summer 

Absent: Councillor Kelly Miller (with notice) 
Youth Councillor Brenna Rice 

Staff: CAO, Chris Cvik 
Corporate Officer, Jeanette McDougall 

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. with Mayor Heiberg presiding.

2. DELEGATIONS - None

3. NOTICE OF NEW BUSINESS
Mayor’s Additions:  None
Councillor’s Additions: None
CAO Additions:    None

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA BY CONSENSUS

5. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

M1 MARCH 23, 2020 REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES

RESOLUTION NO. 071/20 
M/S Councillors  Gibbs / Paice 
THAT the minutes of the March 23, 2020 Regular Council Meeting be adopted as 
presented. 
CARRIED 
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7. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES

M1 MARCH 23, 2020 REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES

Page 1, D2:  Daryl Johnson – Manufactured Home Park Rezoning 
Staff will prepare a report to Council advising of the process involved for a rezoning 
application. 

Page 4, SR9:  Protective Services Monthly Report – March 2020 
The Mayor advised that subsequent to March 23, 2020, the Province mandated all 
municipalities to setup Level 1 Emergency Operations Centres and the District has 
complied with this.  The Provincial Health Officer has issued new guidelines 
pertaining to Bylaw Enforcement under the Public Health Act. 

8. PUBLIC HEARING

9. STAFF REPORTS

SR1 SWIMMING POOL FEES – DISABLED PERSONS RATE

RESOLUTION NO. 072/20 
M/S Councillors Markin / Summer 
THAT Council not approve the request for the addition of a reduction in the pool 
admission rate for disabled persons; and 

THAT Administration communicate the above resolution to the resident who made 
the inquiry. 
CARRIED 

SR2 COMMUNITY HALL – JANITORIAL SERVICES 

RESOLUTION NO. 073/20 
M/S Councillors Gibbs / Quibell 
THAT Council receives the Community Hall – Janitorial Services report for 
information. 
CARRIED 

10. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS

11. BYLAWS

B1 BYLAW NO. 907, 2020 – CEMETERY MANAGEMENT 

RESOLUTION NO.074/20 
M/S Councillors Quibell / Summer 
THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw No. 907, 2020 Cemetery 
Management be adopted as of April 14, 2020. 
CARRIED 
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B2 BYLAW NO. 912, 2020 – ROAD CLOSURE – BECKMAN ROAD 

RESOLUTION NO. 075/20 
M/S Councillors Gibbs / Markin 
THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw No. 912, 2020 Road Closure – 
Beckman Road be adopted as of April 14, 2020. 
CARRIED 

B3 BYLAW NO. 916, 2020 – AMENDMENT TO BYLAW NO. 911, 2019, 
DA THOMAS ROAD CLOSURE 

RESOLUTION NO. 076/20 
M/S Councillors Quibell / Summer 
THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw No. 916, 2020, Amendment to Bylaw 
No. 911, 2019 Road Closure – DA Thomas Road be adopted as of April 14, 
2020. 
CARRIED 

12. CORRESPONDENCE

C1 PUBLIC FEEDBACK RE BYLAW NO. 916, 2020 – AMENDMENT
– ROAD CLOSURE, DA THOMAS ROAD

Mayor Heiberg reviewed correspondence from Evelyn Edinger, and late 
correspondence from Bill Lindsay and Al Edgar.  Administration confirmed that 
the District’s legal counsel thoroughly reviewed the document and did not identify 
any areas of concern. 

The Mayor will contact BC Hydro regarding removal of the guard rails and also 
regarding the availability of birch wood at Halfway River. 

C2 COMMUNITY FUTURES - EMERGENCY LOAN APPLICATION INFORMATION 
Received for Information. 

C3 NORTH CENTRAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION 
– BOARD HIGHLIGHTS
Received for Information.

C4 CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM GRANT – BEATTIE LIFT STATION 
Received for Information.   It was noted that this is the second grant application 
for Beattie Lift Station that has been rejected.  There is one outstanding grant 
application for this project. 
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C5 WOUNDED WARRIORS DONATION REQUEST 

RESOLUTION NO. 077/20 
M/S Councillors Paice / Markin 
THAT Council approve advertising in four (4) issues of the Wounded Warriors 
quarterly magazine for the Regular Business Card size for $625.00 plus GST. 
CARRIED 

C6 PROCLAMATION – MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS AWARENESS MONTH 
The Mayor proclaimed the month of May 2020 as “Multiple Sclerosis Awareness 
Month” and the Multiple Sclerosis flag will be flown in the District during May 
2020. 

C7 PROCLAMATION – PUBLIC WORKS WEEK – MAY 17-23,2020 
The Mayor proclaimed the week of May 17-23, 2020 as “Public Works Week”. 

C8 COVID - TESTING NEEDED FOR FIRST RESPONDERS 
Received for information. 

C9 HUDSON’S HOPE HEALTH CARE & HOUSING SOCIETY 
– FUNDING APPROVAL
The Mayor asked if Council members are interested in participating in an Ad Hoc 
Committee pertaining to this project that they contact him. 

C10 DOUBLE “H” SADDLE CLUB – PARTNERING REQUEST 
RE GRANT APPLICATION 
Councillor Paice will contact the Double “H” Saddle Club regarding partnering 
with the River of the Peace Metis Society which will allow the Double “H” Saddle 
Club to apply for a grant from Farm Credit Canada. 

C11 BC HYDRO – UPDATE RE SITE C & COVID9 
Received for Information. 

13. REPORTS BY MAYOR & COUNCIL ON MEETINGS AND LIAISON
RESPONSIBILITIES

14. OLD BUSINESS

15. NEW BUSINESS
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16. PUBLIC INQUIRIES

17. NOTICE OF CLOSED MEETING

18. ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Heiberg declared the meeting adjourned at 6:50 pm.

DIARY Diarized 
Conventions/Conferences/Holidays 
Commercial Water Rate Increase-annual budget 
Consideration 08/04/19 

Certified Correct: 

_______________________   _______________             _________ 
Dave Heiberg, Mayor       Jeanette McDougall, Corporate Officer 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 
RFD#: CC-2020-34 Date: April 16, 2020 

Meeting#: CM042720 Originator: Chris Cvik, CAO 
RFD TITLE: 2019 Financial Statements 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That Council accepts the Draft District of Hudson's Hope 2019 Financial Statements. 

2. That Council accept the Draft Financial Statement as presented be approved as the 2019 
Final financial Statements and the Chair and CAO be authorized to sign the 2019 District 
of Hudson's Hope Financial Statements. 

*Note: KPMG, the Auditor for the District of Hudson's Hope will be presenting the draft 2019 
Financial Statements via the phone on April 27, 2019. 

BACKGROUND: 

In accordance with Section 167 -Annual Financial Statements in the Community Charter, the 
Audited Financial statements for the preceding year must be presented for Council approval 
prior to May 15. 

167 (1) Municipal financial statements for a fiscal year must be 
(a)prepared by the financial officer, and 
(b )presented to council for its acceptance. 

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the financial statements must be prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments. 
(3) The inspector may require or authorize, generally or for a specified municipality, that the 
financial statements vary from or include additional information to the requirements of 
subsection (2). 
(4) By May 15 in each year, a municipality must submit to the inspector its audited financial 
statements for the preceding year and any other financial information requested by the 
inspector. 
(5) In addition to any requirement under subsection (4), the financial officer must compile 
and supply information on the financial affairs of the municipality requested by the inspector. 

Page 1 of 2 
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DISCUSSION: 

The Financial Statements are comprised of the following: 

1. Statement of Financial Position 
2. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 
3. Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
4. Statement of Cash Flow 
5. Notes to the Financial Statements. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: N/A 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

A copy of the Financial Statements will be posted on the District website. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Draft 2019 District of Hudson's Hope Financial Statements. 

Chris c~ CAO 

Page 2 of 2 
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the District of Hudson's Hope (the "District") 
are the responsibility of the District's management and have been prepared in compliance with 
legislation, and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local governments 
established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of Charte ed Professional Accountants of 
Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policjes are de cribed in Note 1 to the 
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of cons Ii ate fir:, n ial statements necessarily 
involves the use of estimates based on management' ju gme , , a 'i ularly when transactions 
affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized itli e a·r1 y u til future periods. 

reasonable 

Mr. Chris Cvik 
Chief Administrative Officer 

e been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external 
ing Independent Auditors' Report outlines their 
· d their opinion on the District's consolidated 

Mrs. Rhonda Eastman 
Deputy Treasurer 

r~~eace II counfry 

KPMG LLP 1~; .:1 Cinadim1 limi'<;d liabr.nv fHHtt\i'H<~h1p uud a -ocrobor finu ,)f tho KPMG notwork o! 111d1;p(\ncJ,,n1 
member lirrns ."tffil1,11ed vvth Kf-'t,1(i lntr-mat.onal Cooprnaliv e i l<PMh lrucrnauonaf"r. J t';wi~,s 1;11111v 
KPtv1G Canada provides services tu KPtvh., LLP 
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KPMG LLP 
177 Victoria Street, Suite 400 
Prince George BC V2L 5R8 
Canada 
Tel (250) 563-7151 
Fax(250) 563-5693 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Mayor and Council of District of Hudson's Ho~e 

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial 
"District") which comprise: 

• 
• the consolidated statement of operatio s 

then ended 

• 

• 

rict of Hudson's Hope, (the 

• including a summary of 

We con IJc d our d' in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards. Ou ress om ibilities under those standards are further described in the 
"Auditors' e p n i ilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our 
auditors' report. 
We are independent of the District in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with 
Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

r<P{'vllJ Ll.F'. 1s .1 Canadian lmitod l.abifitv (),\ll'lL'f~"IP [m,J a "·,;•_,..n.-:'r finu ,)f lhr: KPMG 1·1t'.'lWOf., 111 ·ndr:01 nd-n. 
nuuubor firmc; 1/iil·;iturl v,.,jih KF'MG !t1ter11;1l;•"'nal Coopr~r,kv( (KPfvlb lnl(;rn11t1<Y.'ll/. ,1 ~;vv:,;,: cntitv 
Kr'M(j Cana da J)((J1/{l1.'~: servic es to KPl\:lU I. LP 
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Page 2 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
District's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the District or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the District's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance , ut whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstateme t, · het e d e to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 

We also: 

• 

• Eval ate tffie appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of acco n ·ng estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the District's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the District to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Prince George, Canada 

April 27, 2020 

Council Agenda - April 27, 2020 Page 13 of 159



VIST1UCT OF tlUVSON'S t£0P£ 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 

2019 

Financial assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) 
Accounts receivable (note 3) 
De osit - Munici al Finance Authorit 

$ 

Financial liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 4) 
Reserve - Municipal Finance Authority 
Deferred revenue (note 5) 
Debt, net of sinkin funds note 6 

Net financial assets 

Non-financial assets: 
Tangible capital assets (note 7) 
Land held for resale 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 

21,363,090 
1,426,128 

17,738 
177,731 

22,984,687 

$ 28,997,409 

2018 

$ 5,416,404 
451,813 

497 
5,868,714 

301,942 
497 

528,160 
11,538 

842,137 

5,026,577 

21,208,775 
1,354,003 

78,843 

22,641,621 

$ 27,668,198 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Mayor 
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VIST'RICT OF HUVSON'S HOPE 
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 

2019 
Budget 2019 2018 

Revenue: 
Net taxation revenue (note 11) $ 
Grants in lieu of taxes 
Sales of services and user charges (note 12) 
Other revenue from own sources 
Government transfers: (note 13) 

Provincial 
Federal 

$ $ 2,042,293 
1,645,129 
589,984 
159,296 

1,496,816 
193,450 

T otal revenue 

2,,$ ,902 2,583,135 
259,475 276,214 

1,148,358 1,190,261 
132,765 176,631 
20,241 44,356 

1,035,554 933,610 
56,849 149,991 

549,050 524,436 
5,647,194 5,878,634 

1,027,505 1,329,211 248,334 

27,668,198 27,668,198 27,419,864 

$ 28,695,703 $ 28,997,409 $ 27,668,198 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2 
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HU□son·s 
HOPS 
f LA~~@Linl> Of +~t f Met VIST'RICT OF HUDSON'S fl.OPE 

Consolidated Statement of Change In Net Financial Assets 

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 

2019 
Budget 2019 2018 

Annual surplus 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets 
Acquisition of land held for resale 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets 
Proceeds on sale of tan ible ca ital assets 

Net financial assets, beginning of year 

$ 1,027,505 $ 1,329,211 $ 248,334 

(902,486) 

979,194 
535,293 
339,721 

5,026,577 

1,200,056 

1,121,213 

3,905,364 

$ 6,012,722 $ 5,026,577 

(78,843) 

3 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 

2019 2018 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities: 
Annual surplus $ 248,334 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 979,194 
Loss on sale of capital assets 535,293 

Changes in non-cash operating working capital: 
Accounts receivable 659,794 
Inventories 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (326,842) 
Prepaid expenses (78,843) 
Deferred revenue 

2,016,930 

Capital activities: 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital 84,734 339,721 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,251,066) (902,486} 
Ac uisition of land held for resale 72,125 

(1,238,457) (562,765) 

(2,717) (2,613) 

650,731 1,451,552 

5,416,404 3,964,852 

$ 6,067,135 $ 5,416,404 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

4 
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HU□son·s 
HOPS 
f~~ROtilll> Of HE fMet 

VIST'RICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

Nature of operations: 

The District of Hudson's Hope (the "District") was incorporated in 1965 as a District Municipality 
under the Community Charter, formerly the Municipal Act, a t tute of the Province of British 
Columbia. Its principal activities include the provision of local , v n mellf ervices to residents of the 
incorporated area. These include administrative, , rotective, tr.a•~ ortation, environmental, 
recreational, water, sanitary sewer and fiscal services. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The consolidated financial statements of the 

(a) Basis of.consolidation: 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) Trust funds: 

School Board Transactions: 

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the 
operation of the egion and the School Board are not reflected in these consolidated 
financial statements. 

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the District are not included in 
these consolidated financial statements. 

5 
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VIST'RICT Of HUDSON'S tf.OPf 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(b) Basis of accounting: 

The District follows 

(c) Revenue recognition: 

statement of 

(d) 

(e) 

, rt-term highly liquid investments with a term to maturity of 90 

6 
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VIST'RICT Of tlUVSON'S tlOPE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Non-financial assets: 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Asset Useful life - ears 

10 - 50 
5 - 25 

15 - 40 
15 - 40 

use. 

7 

Council Agenda - April 27, 2020 Page 20 of 159



HU□son·s 
HOPS 
flNi~Ro~"I> Of +M: fM~t VIST'RICT Of HUVSON~S HOPE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(ii) Contributions to tangible capital assets: 

(iii) Interest capitalization: 

(iv) Land held for resale: 

o t nd net realizable value. Cost 
land for sale or servicing. 

cost and replacement cost with cost 

(g) 

The pre ated financial statements requires management to make 
estimates a d assumptiorns t at affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of c0. tingent as ets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of r. enue and expenses during the period. Items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of tangible capital assets. Actual 
results could differ from these estimates. 

8 

Council Agenda - April 27, 2020 Page 21 of 159



HU□son·s 
HOPS 
f~9t<O~lll> Of H~ f~Mt VIST'RICT Of tlUVSON'S tlOPE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(h) Contaminated sites: 

water or sediment of a chemical, organic, or 
exceeds an environmental standard. 

A liability for remediation of contaminated 
recoveries, when all of the following criteria are me . 

i) 
ii) 
iii) 
iv) 
v) 

(i) 

2. 

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of cash balances and short-term investments held with 
the Northern Peace Savings and Credit Union as follows: 

2019 2018 

Cash 
Short-term investments 

$ 3,647,629 
2,419,506 

$ 3,126,311 
2,290,093 

$ 6,067,135 $ 5,416,404 

9 
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DISTRICT OF tfUDSON'S H.OPE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

3. Accounts receivable: 

2019 2018 

Grants $ 251,634 
Sales tax 32,331 
Other 83,925 
Taxes 83,923 

451,813 

4. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 

2018 

Accounts payable - trade 214,910 $ 130,915 
Wages and related costs payabl 176,253 169,910 
Other 1,117 

$ 391,163 $ 301,942 

5. 

2019 2018 

$ 508,160 $ 528,160 

10 
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VIST'RICT Of HUDSON'S HOPE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

6. Debt, net of sinking funds: 

The District issues debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia 
("MFA"), pursuant to security issuing bylaws under authority Section 178 of the Community 
Charter, to finance certain capital expenditures. 

Interest Year of 
Purpose rate maturity 

General fund: 
Local 

711 improvements 4.60% 8,821 $ 11,538 

(a) 

Total 

$ 1,765 
1,765 
1,765 
5,295 

3,526 
$ 8,821 

11 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

6. Debt, net of sinking funds (continued): 

(b) The District has the following un-issued loan authorizafo 

Bylaw Number 2018 

711 45,742 

(c) 

(d) 

12 
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VIST'R.ICT OF tl.UVSON'S ti.OPE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

7. Tangible capital assets: 

Buildings 
and site 

Land 

Sanitary 
Water sewer 

infrastructure Total 

Cost: 
Balance, beginning of year $ $ 5,575,190 $ 4,097,137 $ 33,791,137 
Additions 816,328 79,684 1,323,191 
Disposals (163,534) 
Reclass for assets held for sale 72125 
Balance, end of year 5,909,117 6,391,518 4,176,821 34,878,669 

Accumulated amortization: 
Balance, beginning of year 3,040,070 3,492,746 2,276,648 564,020 12,582,362 
Amortization expense 390,729 132,607 118,638 108,266 981,559 
Disposal 48 342 48 342 
Balance, end of year 3,382,457 3,625,353 2,395,286 672,286 13,515,579 

Net book value, end of year $ 3 987 689 $ 2 283 764 $ 3 996 232 $ 3,504,535 $ 21,363,090 

13 
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DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

7. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

Water Sanitary sewer 
Land infrastructure infrastructure Total 

Cost: 
Balance, beginning of year $ $ 5,575,190 $ 3,610,952 $35,120,863 
Additions 491,510 902,486 
Disposals (5,325) (878,209) 
Reclass for assets held for sale 1354003 
Balance, end of year 5,909,117 5,575,190 4,097,137 33,791,137 

Accumulated amortization: 
Balance, beginning of year 2,657,111 3,360,582 2,145,981 463,405 11,606,363 
Amortization expense 382,959 132,164 130,667 103,809 979,193 
Disposal 3,198 3,194 
Balance, end of year 3,040,070 3,492,746 2,276,648 564,016 12,582,362 

Net book value, end of year $ 4 078 931 $ 2,416371 $ 3,298,542 $ 3,533,121 $ 21,208,775 
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Hu□son·s 
HOPS 
flA~1RoLi"l> Of H~ fM~~ DISTRICT OF H.UVSON'S ff.OPE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

8. Accumulated surplus: 

2019 2018 

Surplus: 
Invested in tangible capital assets $ 21,208,775 
General fund 3,469,147 
Water utility fund 419,078 
Sanitary sewer fund 555,887 

25,652,887 

Reserves set aside by Council: 
Water utility fund: 

Unexpended funds: 
MFA debt reserve 142,858 
MFA sinking fund surplus 73,821 

216,678 

1,302,080 

214,043 
35,047 

217,462 
30,000 

2,130,755 1,798,632 

$ 28,997,409 $ 27,668,198 
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Hu□son·s 
HOPS 
f!A~~®Li"l> Of +~i fM~~ DISTRICT OF tf.UVSON'S tf.OPE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

9. Commitments and contingencies: 

(a) The District is responsible, as a member of the Peace River Regional District, for its 
portion of any operating deficits or capital debt related to functions in which it 
participates. Management does not consider payment under this contingency to be 
likely and therefore no amounts have been accrued. 

(b) 

(c) 

, V8ft1/. three years, an ac arI I valuatiori is performed to assess the financial position of 
tH I? a and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate 
com i'mea employer and lllil mber contribution rate to fund the Plan. The actuary's 
calcula ectl OQ tribution .at is based on the entry-age normal cost method, which 
produces e Ioli\ -ter ate of member and employer contributions sufficient to provide 
benefits for a ra, e fw ure entrants to the Plan. This rate may be then adjusted for the 
amortization of mi ctuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of 
any unfunded actuarial liability. 

The most recent valuation for the Plan as at December 31, 2018, indicated a $2,866 
million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. 

16 
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Hu□son·s 
HOPS 
f tA~4RoLinl> Of +~~ ft;Mt DISTRICT OF tlUVSON'S tlOPE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

9. Commitments and contingencies (continued): 

(c) The District paid $144,595 (2018 - $122,030) for employer contributions to the Plan in 
fiscal 2019. 

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021, 

(d) 

(e) 

10. Trust fund: 

The District maintains a cemetery perpetual care fund in accordance with the Cemeteries and 
Funeral Services Act. As at December 31, 2019, the trust fund balance for both the liability and 
its corresponding term deposit is $17,837 (2018 - $16,699). 

17 
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HU□son·s 
HOPS 
f lA~~flOt4~l> Of Ht f~M~ VIST'RICT OF tf.UVSON'S tlOPE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

11. Net taxation revenue: 

The District is required to collect taxes on behalf of and transfer these amounts to the 
government agencies noted below: 

Taxes collected: 
General purposes $ 2,048,391 
Collections for other governments 3,147,640 

C Ar'\~ n~A 
;:, 1 1 ~o,uv, 

Less transfers to other governments: 
Province of British Columbia - school 2,640,701 
Peace River Regional District 151,129 
Peace River Regional Hospital Distri t 222,936 
Royal Canadian Mounted Pol' e 102,698 
B. C. Assessment Authori~ 36,199 
Municipal Finance AuthontY, 75 

3,100,764 3,153,738 

$ 2,107,549 $ 2,042,293 

12. 

2019 2018 

Water utility $ 211,194 $ 149,573 
Sewer system 82,240 79,302 
General government services 173,490 141,499 
Planning, development and bylaw services 8,147 11,678 
Environmental and public health services 94,108 74,636 
Recreation and cultural services 157,711 133,296 

$ 726,890 $ 589,984 
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Hu□son·s 
HOPS 
f~q~~n1> Of H~ f~M~ 

VIST'RICT OF tf.UVSON'S uot« 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

13. Government transfers: 

2019 2018 

Revenue: 
Provincial grants: 
Stimulus $ 739,418 
Canada Student Grant 
Unconditional 23,795 
CARLP grant 1,503 
BC Hydro (tree program) 2,000 
Northern Development Initiative Trust 40,338 
Small Community grant 292,433 
Tourism BC grant 10,000 
Union of BC Municipalities 72,181 
Atkinson subdivision grant 315,148 
BC Hydro 

1,496,816 
Federal grants: 
Gas tax 195,835 193,450 

$ 2,262,338 $ 1,690,266 

14. 

2019 2018 

Legislative $ 117,339 $ 103,605 
Grants in aid 37,663 14,715 
General government services 2,237,503 2,406,368 
ICBC 52,397 58,447 

$ 2,444,902 $ 2,583,135 
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HU□son·s 
HOPS 
flAtjqROl.inJ> "f H~ fMei 

DISTRICT OF tlUVS<!JN'S tl<!JPE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31 , 2019 

15. Budget data: 

The budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements is based upon the 2019 
operating and capital budgets approved by Council on April 23, 2019. Amortization was not 
contemplated on development of the budget and, as such, has not been included. The table 
below reconciles the approved budget to the budget figur reported in these consolidated 
financial statements. 

Revenues: 
Operating budget 7,491,864 
Capital operations budget 1,423,474 

Less: 
Transfers from other funds 2,373,745 

6,541,593 

7,491,864 
1,423,474 

(1,977,776) 
1,423,474 
5,514,088 

$ 1,027,505 

16. Significant taxpayers: 

The District derives a significant portion of its taxation revenue from the utility sector. Any 
changes in this sector could have an impact on the ongoing operations of the District. 

17. Subsequent event: 

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the 
World Health Organization and has had a significant financial, market and social dislocating 
impact. At this time, these factors present uncertainty over future cash flows, may cause 
significant changes to the assets or liabilities and may have a significant impact on future 
operations. An estimate of the financial effect is not practicable at this time. 
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HU□son·s 
HOPS 
ffA~~~lif"J) Of +hi fH\dl 

DISTRICT <!Jf tlUVS<!JN'S tl<!JP£ 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

18. Segmented information: 

Segmented information has been identified based upon lines of services provided by the District. 
District services are provided by the departments and their activities are reported by functional 
area in the body of the consolidated financial statements. Certain lines of services that have 
been separately disclosed in the segmented information, are ollows: 

(i) General Government and Administration: 

The general government operations and administr 
administration and legislative services and any. 
departmental in the District. 

(ii) Protective Services: 

Protective services is comprised of t e fire d 
costs incurred by the District. 

(iii) Public Works Services: 

services is responsible for environmental programs such 
as waste m age en, w ch encompasses garbage collection and recycling. This 
segment is also sp si le for rental of the doctor's office in the District. 

(v) Environmental Development Services: 

Environmental development services is responsible for community and economic 
development, in regard to community development projects. 

(vi) Planning, Development and Bylaw Services: 

Planning, development and bylaw services is responsible for community planning (OCP), 
zoning, bylaw enforcement, animal control and building inspection in the District. 
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Hu□son·s 
HOPS 
f~~Rc>~"J) Of +tt~ fM~t DISTRICT OF tf.UVSON'S ti.OPE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

18. Segmented information: (continued): 

(vii) Recreational and Cultural Services: 

Recreational and cultural services provides various recreational and cultural opportunities 
to the residents and visitors of the District, including the I 1:5 ;ary, gool, arena, community hall, 
tourism information centre and museum. 

(viii) Water Utility and Sanitary Sewer Systems: 
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9!!!::.2 HU□son·s -- HOPS 
rLA14@t101> of +H riM~ 

DISTRICT OF tlUVSON'S HOPE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

18. Segmented information: (continued): 

General Water Utility and 
Government and Protective Public Works Recreational and Sanitary Sewer 
Administration Services Services Cultural Services S stem Total 

Revenue: 
Taxation $ 2,107,549 $ $ $ $ $ $ 2,107,549 
Government transfers 2,262,337 2,262,337 
Grants in lieu 1,727.048 1,727,048 
User charges 174,575 7,362 157,711 293,434 726,891 
Other 152,580 152 580 
Total revenues 6,424,089 7,362 157,711 293,434 6,976,405 

Expenses: 
Salaries, wages and 
employee benefits 713,243 9,016 472,562 65,678 1,969,828 

Operating 592,706 11,225 36,964 561,899 266,059 2,239,972 
Legislature 117,339 3,131 120,470 
Amortization 764,246 217,312 981,559 
Interest 56,614 56,614 
Insurance 76,705 358 1,093 94,516 
Professional services 124,049 16,396 163,825 
Garbage disposal 20,410 20 410 
Total expenses 2,444,902 259,475 1,148,358 132,765 20,241 56,849 1,035,554 549,049 5,647,194 

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 3,979,187 $ 12ss,41si $ p.148,358l $ !38,ssei $ 120.241l $ !49.487l $ !877,843l $ 12ss,e15l $ 1,329,211 
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DISTRICT OF tlUVSON'S tlOPf 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2019 

18. Segmented information: (continued): 

General Water Utility and 
Government and Protective Public Works Recreational and Sanitary Sewer 
Administration Services Services Cultural Services S stem Total 

Revenue: 
Taxation $ 2,042,293 $ $ $ $ $ $ 2,042,293 
Government transfers 1,690,266 1,690,266 
Grants in lieu 1,645,129 1,645,129 
User charges 141,499 11,678 133,296 228,875 589,984 
Other 159 296 159,296 
Total revenue 11,€78 '1'l 'l ')0~ 228,875 s.1261968 ..J,v,u, .. u" , ..... ,- ....... 
Expenses: 
Salaries, wages and 
employee benefits 769,380 36,725 93,011 434,911 143,920 2,219,900 

Operating 872,501 7,631 53,136 498,424 155,632 2,296,349 
Legislature 100,775 100,775 
Amortization 754,310 224,884 979,194 
Interest (recovery) 19,291 19,291 
Insurance 16,006 1,862 275 128,498 
Professional services 50,872 1,982. 84,104 
Garbage disposal 50,523 50,523 
Total expenses 2,583,135 276,214 1,190,261 176,631 44,356 149,991 933,610 524,436 5,878,634 

Annual surplus (tJefit:il) $ 3,095,348 $ F1s.214l $ p,1so.2s1i $ po1.ss5l $ (44,356l $ p3a,313l $ (B00,314l $ 12s5,5s1i $ 248,334 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RFD#: CC-2020-31 Date: A ril 17, 2020 
Meetin #: CM042720 Ori inator: Chris Cvik, CAO 
RFD TITLE: Develo ment Variance Permit DVP - District of Hudson's Ho e 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. THAT Council approves the Draft DVP- District of Hudson's Hope to continue to move 
forward on the basis it is unlikely to negatively affect adjacent property owners; and 

2. THAT Council.direct Administration to notify adjacent Neighbouring Properties and 
Submit the Referral to Government Agencies for review and comments; and 

· 3. THAT Council direct Administration bring a final report back to Council for 
consideration. 

BACKGROUND: 

Administration has budgeted $2,500 towards the purchase and installation of a billboard sign 
that will be located at the Lucas Subdivision. The sign will show a map of the subdivision and 
show which lots have been sold and which are still available for purchase (see attached). The 
sign was ordered and has been delivered, and is waiting to be installed. The sign is 96" X 96". 

The maximum size of a sign that is permitted under our Zoning Bylaw (No. 823, 2013) is 1 m2 

in any Residential (R Zone). This includes Lucas Subdivision which created R1b Zone: Low 
Density (Atkinson) through Bylaw 873, 2017. 

DISCUSSION: 

The District will need to apply for a Development Variance Permit (DVP) to vary our zoning bylaw 
to allow the sign to be installed at the Lucas Subdivision. 

The sign will be located in the District Right-of-Way at the intersection of Dudley Drive and Stege 
Road located at the South East corner of Lot 27 Plan EPP77312 Section 13 Township 81 Range 
26 Meridian Land District 44 (PIO: 030-359-147). 

The sign will be located far enough back from the road to not impact snow removal in the winter 
or obstruct the view for traffic. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

The $400 DVP fee will be charged against Bylaw Development (01-18-1800-5304) and credited 
as Revenue under the Land Use Application Fees (01-18-1800-4316). The effect nets to zero. 

Page 1 of 2 
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COMMUNICATION: Notice to affected property owners and tenants 

Under Section 499 of the Community Charter. 
(1) If a local government proposes to pass a resolution to issue a development variance permit, 
it must give notice in accordance with this section. 
(2) The notice must state the following: 

(a)in general terms, the purpose of the proposed permit; 
(b)the land or lands that are the subject of the proposed permit; 
(c)the place where and the times and dates when copies of the proposed permit may be 
inspected. 

(3) The notice must be mailed or otherwise delivered at least 10 days before adoption of the 
resolution to issue the permit 

(a)to the owners, as shown on the assessment roll as at the date of application for the 
permit, and 
(b)to any tenants in occupation, as at the date of the mailing or delivery of the notice, 
of each parcel, any part of which is the subject of the permit or is within a distance 
specified by bylaw from that part of the land that is subject to the permit. 

(4) The obligation to give notice under this section is satisfied if the local government made a 
reasonable effort to mail or otherwise deliver the notice. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Development Variance Permit Process Flow Chart 
2. Zoning Bylaw No. 823, 2013 - Section 4.17 Signs and Notices (Page 22) 
3. Draft of "96 X 96" Billboard Sign to be installed at the Lucas Subdivision. 
4. Draft Development Variance Permit Application. 
5. Draft Development Variance Permit No. 2020-01. 
6. Draft letter to owners and tenants within 100 metre radius. 
7. Draft Public Notice for DVP No. 2020-01. 

Chris Cvik, CAO 

Page 2 of 2 
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PARTG 
DEVELOPMENT 
VARIANCE PERMITS 

Development 
Procedures 
Manual 

Development Variance Permit Process (Flow-Chart) 

1. Preliminary Inquiry 

3. Technical Review by District Staff 

4. Draft Development Variance Permit & Submit 
Reoort to Council 

5. Council Considers Apptication & Denies or 
Proceeds 

6. Notify Neighbourtng Properties 

7. Referral to Government Agencies 

8. Submit Report to Council 

9. Final Consideration by Council 

1,0. Preparation of Development Variance Permit 

12. Permit Filed at Land Title Office 

501Page 

HUDSOn'S 
HOPS 
fl.~~~01,\fll> Of Ht f(;Atle 
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.5 The towing hitch must be removed within 30 days from the date that the manufactured 
home is placed on the foundation. 

4.17 Signs and Notices 

Signs and notices are permitted as follows: 

.1 The maximum number of signs is: 

(a) one per parcel in all zones, except any C-zone; and 

(b) two per parcel in any C-zone . 

. 2 The maximum size of signs is as follows: 

(a) In C-zones, signs combined must not exceed 4. 7 m2 or 1 % of principal buildings 
floor area, whichever is greater. 

(b) In all M-zones, signs must not exceed 4.7 m2• 

(c) In the OR zone, signs must not exceed 2 m2 • 

. 3 In Rural and R-zones, one "for rent" or "for sale" sign is permitted provided that the sign: 

(a) does not exceed 1 m2 in an R-zone; and 

(b) does not exceed 3 m2 in any rural zone . 

.4 Where a day care centre is a permitted use, one sign not exceeding 3 m2 in area is 
permitted to identify the enterprise on the parcel. 

.5 In any zone where there is a commercial kennel, one sign not exceeding 1 m2 in area is 
permitted to identify the enterprise on the parcel. 

.6 In addition to the permitted signs described herein, directional signage is permitted in 
Rural zones and the Outdoor Recreation zone. 
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Lucas 
Subdivision 

LOTS NOW 
FOR SALE 

Starting at 

$37,500 
Contact the District of 

Hudson's Hope 
for sales information 

250- 783-9901 
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Box 330 
9904 Dudley Drive 
Hudson's Hope BC voe rvo 
Telephone 250-783-9901 
Fax: 250-783-5741 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATION 

IMPORTANT • Incomplete applications will not be accepted 

Applicant (please print) 

Name: ----=D~is~t~ric~t~o~f ~H~u~d~so~n_'~s _H~o~p~e _ 

Address: 9904 Dudley Drive Postal Code: V0C1V0 -~=--=---=--=-===.,..--=-'..:...:...='----------- ----'-'"-=-"---'--''------- 

Phone: 250-783-9901 Fax __ 2_5_0_-7_8_3_-5_7_4_1 E-mail: cao@hudsonshope.ca 

Owner(s) (please print) - If different from Applicant 

Name: --------------------------------- 
Address: Postal Code: ------------------- ------- 
Phone: Fax E-mail: -------- -------- ------------ 

Property Description/ Address 

Legal Description: Intersection of Dudley Drive and Stege Road located at the South East corner 
of Lot 27 Plan EPP77312 Section 13 Township 81 Range 26 Meridian Land District 44 (PIO: 030- 
359-147). 

Civic Address: Southeast corner of Lot 27 Plan EPP77312 Section 13 Township 81 Range 26 
Meridian Land District 44 (PIO: 030-359-147) 

Official Community Plan Map Designation: __ C=-=-or=--=e'""R:....:..::..es=i=de=n;,..:.;t=ia=I _ 

Present Zoning: R1b- Low Density - Bylaw 873, 2017 

Current Use of Property: District of Hudson's Hope Right of Way 

This information is collected for the administrative and/or operational functions of the District of Hudson's Hope as 
authorized by the Local Government Act. This information has been collected, and will be used and maintained, in 
accordance with the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. Should you have any questions above, 
please contact the District Administrator at 250-783-9901. 
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Project Description/Proposed Development Variance(s) 

The Development Variance(s) requested vary the provisions of the following District Bylaws: 

District Bylaw Variance Requested (Please Applicable Section(s) 
Check) 

Zoninq ✓ 
Manufactured Home Park 
Subdivision Servicinq 

Detailed Description of Variance: (Site Plan Attached): 

The DVP Application varies the regulation of the Zoning Bylaw 823, 2013 Section 4.17.3. 

From: In Rural and R-zones, one "for rent" or "for sale" sign is permitted provided that the 
sign (a) does not exceed 1 m2 in an R-zone. 

To: In Rural and R-zones, one "for rent" or "for sale" sign is permitted provided that the 
sign (a) does not exceed 2.5 m2 in an R-zone. 

Increasing the size of the sign allows the District to install a 2.44 m2 billboard size sign to assist with 
the marketing of vacant lots at the Lucas Subdivision. 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the information is true to the best of 
my knowledge 

Signature of the Applicant 

Date: _ 

Authorization 
(Required if applicant is not the registered owner) 

Signature of the Owner 

Date: --------------- 

DVP SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS If "Not Provided" please explain 

(please check either "Provided" or "Not Provided") Provided Not Provided 
Application Fee 
Current State of Title Certificate 
Letter of Consent from the Owner (onlv reauired if the N/A 
Applicant is not the Owner) 
Site Plan 

FEE SCHEDULE 
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DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT NO. 2020-01 

Pursuant to section 498 (1) of the Community Charter, the Council of the District of Hudson's 
Hope has, by resolution, issued a Development Variance Permit to: 

District of Hudson's Hope 
PO Box 330 
9904 Dudley Drive 
Hudson's Hope, BC 
voe ivo 

(the "Permittee") 

1. 

2. 

&, 
,;_,'.-/,/', ,~jp/ 

;,,~ ;}}~/ / -;;,;;,'%:it/ 
/f/iy:~~;/-;:. 
'l ,,,/; 1/ . , 

?f#/ //,/" /,/,;;,; ''W~, 
'".· /'~/ 

,;:;-'/,,;:; ~½'-• 
This Development Variance Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws 
of the District of Hudson's Hope applicable thereto, except as specifically varied or 
supplemented by this Permit and it app((Js only to those lands o#oed by the Permittees 
within the District of Hudson's Hope and leg·ally described as: -?~:fP0 

½- ;:-,/, ,j%,%;i- ,;- : /, ,. ··41, / .;J,tf:' ,, :«{ 
District of Hudson's Hope Right of Way at the ·Ititersection of Dudley Drive' and Stege ,,-1/;,, /'/'. ,;., . ,:%, 
Road located at the South Easf;corner of Lot 27 Rlao,EPP77312 Section 13 Township 

/,:/ <,/y, f )'..· '/,1 ,::;".I;, 
81 Range 26 Meridian Land Di$,~jct 44:,(flD: 030-359,~1~7). , 

(the "Lands'') ·· ;3,,,, ~ ,, 
~/½ ,1/ ,'.. ·;;,µ:ff- 

/,~..-✓., -~- '1/,1 /,,:~' 
1/ ", ✓ /I/ F //'"' /• 0 ~ ~•, •1/ ;7- 

The Developmefif V~riance Permit varies t)iE:!° regt1lation ofthe Zoning Bylaw 823, 2013 
sections " sectiorf 4. 17. :f,, : ,. 1/ " 

///.·,, ::½ 1/. 

,,,, ,,~ 7?',- ~✓ 

From: In Rural and R-zones,,9ne "for rent" or "for sale" sign is permitted provided that the 
,,,,. sign,(a) doe's not ext,eed 1- n;i2 in arf,R-zone. 

;{;Z'-',;f;;& '.•'. ~4;8;:,,-, ½';,/~ef; 1,,%§: ~%' ,,/:f::ff!;~.- /,, - /~ ~ v;.. •,•?~dsf;, , /./~;, ;;~,.,~ <1/ .. 
/Jo!;? In RuraL~f:ld R-zon,es, one "for''re.nt_;,or "for sale" sign is permitted provided that the 

. ,,,_ . () d'l-'~-- t ,,,:,:,,J/✓, d 2 5 2·· 0 R ,, ,)¾;, sign a ui::~;_"r:io exc~e/ . m 1n an -zone. 
-,,,:..,. ,,,;. 1/1/ f;,, ~/ ,-;, ~%.-:.,, ,,, / 

lncr'tfcl~ing the size of tf);e.sign alloWs the District to install a 2.44 m2 billboard size sign to 
assist with the marketing· qf vacant lots at the Lucas Subdivision. 

3. 
1/ 

This Permit is not a Building Permit. 

Authorizing Resolution No. ,6_1,20 was passed by the Council on the 25th day of May, 2020. 

ISSUED THIS 25th DAY OF MAY, 2020. 

Approving Officer, 
DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 

(This Permit is issued in duplicate) 
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 
NOTICE OF PERMIT 

TO: Registrar 
Land Title Office 
11 - 8th Street #500 
New Westminster, BC V3M 3N7 

FROM: District of Hudson's Hope 
9904 Dudley Drive 
PO Box 330 
Hudson's Hope, BC V0C1V0 

TAKE NOTICE that the land described below is subject to a permit issued by the Council of the 
District of Hudson's Hope. 

/ / 

PARTICULARS OF PERMff 
:/.,;,/. 

Issue Date: May 25, 2020 

Permit Description _ , 
(a) Type of Permit: Development Vari~nce Permit 1/' 

(b) Statutory Authority: Section 498 ofthe Community Charier 
. ,''/#{,{ / ,,;:. 

Legal Description of Land Affected: '%Ji',, c::~1;:✓:/; 
District of Hudson's Hope Right of V>/~Y at th~✓,Jr:itersection of ,Quqley Drive and 
Stege Road located at tpe South East co,~u~~ of;Lot 27 Plan EPP77312 Section 13 
Township 81 Range 2~ Mer,idian Land District 44 (PIO: 030-359-147). 

/,~~~ ,, / ~:~<~;;,, 
,;,_,:, ·:~ ,• ~·- 1'/~1/, 

1/1,,,,1/ :;, f,,-;f¼;;;,;,. ~1\;_, 
... , ,;,, 
-;(~ }:,, .,.,_. ,)' ~I' .,, 

Expiry Date (if any): NOT APPLICABLE 
~ / 

FURTHER PARTICU~~S OF Tf-;!-hlERMIT,~~,¾J3E OBTAINED FROM THE DISTRICT OF 
HUDSON'S HOPE '~!;, '%,,,,, 0~ //, 1,, ~r:t 

:/.,,, :l~· ?-~.I 1// /Z ~/,/ ,,. ·'• z- 
AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that in the casepf a Temporary Commercial or Industrial Permit, 
you ar~ hereby authorized to cancel the notation 9f the filing of this notice against the title to the 
land affec!~d by it on or aft~r the exR,i!Y date specified above without further application from us 
and we consent to a cancellation of the notation on the basis of effluxion of time. 

USE THIS BOX ONLY FOR AN AMENDMENT TO A LAND USE CONTRACT BY WAY OF 
PERMIT UNDER s. 546 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT: 

/ 

THIS NOTICE relates to theamendment of Land Use Contract No. __ , which is registered 
as a charge against the above described land, 

PARTICULARS OF THE AMENDMENT MAY BE OBTAINED 
FROM THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE. 

Dated: May 25, 2020 DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 

by 
Approving Officer 
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HU□son·s 
HOPS 
PLA~~RO~~D Of +~t ptA~~ 

9904 Dudley Drive 
Hudson's Hope BC voe 1V0 
Telephone 250-783-9901 
Fax: 250-783-5741 

PO Box 
Hudson's Hope, BC 
voe ivo 
Dear : 

RE: Proposed Development Variance Permit No. 2020-01 N~:tice 
//,;:/ ,:,;:/ /:ii{/ 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Development Vari~'1S~ .~~gnit application will be discussed 
at the DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE COUNCIL Cf-:11IYIBER$; ~904 Dudley Drive, on 
Monday, May 25, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. to allow the 8~'!~1ic'to make'\,~rl:>al or written representation 
to Council with respect to the following proposed Development vaA~fis;,e Permit. 

////./,,:;; / 1/,;,?3",- {tt:/ ·',, ~;i,.:; 
Owner: District of Hudson's Hope :~~ ";/,%::,, .;;~ .. ; /~ // . ' / ;ir., 

if];, . /<,/.:/: ~/::?/', 
Subject Property: District of Hudson's Hope Right 'of,Wai~tlhe lntersection/'6f,,Dudley Drive 

"1/,'f/. . :: '¾ /_//>/,/ /1/ 
and Stege Road located at the South!:East corner of LcW2'Z~Plan EPP77312 Section 13 

;,;;. ,/,,;','/. /.,/·,,. / 1// 

Township 81 Range 26 Meridian Land;Oisfrict 44 (PIO: 030-a59-147). 
1/,?.::%;. . , ,,,, ~<~1~ •/..-;'.// / '.~;.,-;.,;, ,. :1t 

Application: The owner is requesting a-v'ariancerfroro the "ZoAy,g Bylaw No. 823, 2013" 
section 4 17 3(a) ,,, ,,,,;;:;- ,, , :,: " ·if · , , •//{;.";;; • • /d2/~;~?;:/f: _'. 0:h., // > ,}' ;;:/J, .. :, -~' 

/,/~~%~}•' -5/{i,{ ~0.:::-:,,, ,, ·/}if 'h:,/,:f' \. '/ 
){i;,~/:(/ }.}1/. ~ Y/-~/"' ~,, ,// 

From: In Rural and ijfz~nes, omfJ'.for rent" or ",fpt:sale" sign ls-permitted provided that the sign 
(a) does not e)(t~ed 1 m2 irl'in R-zone. / .:.: · 

~:;~% /~- /, 

To: In Rl!raVa. n.Q ~-zo~J~?,onlf6Pfgttt; or "for:sale" sign is permitted provided that the sign 
"/;f:1//)'J,//';/.'////. /,,,·/,, •//',-:,'/ , •/k,'l /./ r/,,1/, 

(atcloes hbt/ei(;eed 2.5':i:n~.in an R-z0ne., ·/,,, 
/, <,};?/,./ ,:'.',,_q;p_,?:,:, ;/l(J%-~ '/ /,,,, 
%:/ ,,.,,,/4;,, ·1//. ¼> , ·'.. -~ 1: 1/ ,, 

lncreasing::the size of thff1iigp allows"lh.e District to install a 2.44 m2 billboard size sign to assist 
with the nia(t~i~g of vacant11f:$:;1/within fhJ/ucas Subdivision. 

:...-:,;..y.,;. ii 1/ 

Before making ffS:<tt,e,cision, the C9,uncil will hear from all persons who have an interest in this 
matter. Written brief~;,;:nay be stt~fnitted to the municipal office on or before the date and time of 
the meeting or verbaYpr,~sent§ltions may be made to the Council during the meeting. 

;;,,;<, ,, :f, 
~~ }> ,:~, 1/ 

Persons wishing to view the draft Development Variance Permit or requesting additional 
information may contact the municipal office from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday to Friday. 
Due to COVID-19, copies of the proposed documents will only be available electronically. 

Regards, 

Chris Cvik, CAO 
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DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 
Box 330, 9904 Dudley Drive 

Hudson's Hope, BC, voe lVO 
Telephone: (250) 783-9901 

Fax: (250) 783-5741 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

FOR PROPOSED 

Development Variance Permit No. 2020-01 
/0 ;: .. ~//.-: 
/%/>?:- 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Development VariciJt~~~rmit application will be 
discussed at the DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOP~ GOUNCl[[CHAMBERS, 9904 Dudley 
Drive, on Monday, May 25, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. to'allow the public to make verbal or written 

'/. 1/, ,,. /' /,: 

representation to Council with respect to the following proposed DEVELOPMENT 
VARIANCE PERMIT. · ,, 

A copy of the proposed documents ruay be inspected ag,9~~btained from tt,e/Qistrict of 
Hudson's Hope Municipal Office, locatec;J,at 9904 Dudley;Drive, Monday to Friday between 

½· ·/ , ,/, , /- :: 
the hours of 8:30 am and 4:30 p.m. Que to COVID-19, dpquments will be emailed only. ~(/ ,;-:: ... ,,..,., i*/'. 

..,,,,.'l., ;,%, 
,/~/I i\¢/;;,; 

Owner: District of Hudson's Hope. '//.: ·' /;, ·;;>,- 
• 1/ ' •/ /;, 7 

1/ •,, ~ ·,, -', ,,ij, •., , /. / ;✓,, 

Subject Property: Lucas Subdivision - District of-Hudson's H6pe Right of Way at the Intersection 
• :/ / ;;~ • ?// 1/". • 

of Dudley Drive and Stege Road located at the South East corner of Lot 27 Plan EPP77312 Section 
13 Township 81 Range 26 Meridian 1,,~hd District 44_(PID: 030-359-147). 

, '/;.{%;:,- / 
/. ✓ -,,y✓- • ',;1/ .. ,:,, :..,:: /. 

Application:}'fiie owner is reques'ting avariance from the "Zoning Bylaw No. 823, 2013" 
• '/ •'// // "/ / '1/(,-: , 1/, / 

section 4j;?,{3(a) /, , ,~::t , ,· , ,, 
> <. ,, ,--«~ ,..:, 
'-1//~; //, '/',, ,' f:%"'/ 

From:~lfl Rural and R'-Zones, drte "for rent" or "for sale" sign is permitted provided that 
the sign (a) doeS-nqt exceed 1 m2 in an R-zone. 

,; 
-~· 

To: In Rural and R-zones, one "for rent" or "for sale" sign is permitted provided that 
the sign (a) does not exceed 2.5 m2 in an R-zone. 

/ , , 

Increasing the size of the sign allows the District to install a 2. 44 m2 billboard size sign to assist 
with the marketing of vacant lots within the Lucas Subdivision. 

Before making its decision, the Council will hear from all persons who have an interest in this 
matter. Written briefs may be submitted to the municipal office on or before the date and time 
of the meeting or verbal presentations may be made to the Council during the meeting. 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RFD#: CC-2020-39 I Date: April 17, 2020 
Meeting#: CM042720 I Originator: Chris Cvik 
RFD TITLE: Darryl Johnson - Manufactured Home Park Rezoning 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That Council direct Administration to advise Mr. Darryl Johnson, that an Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Amendment and Zoning Bylaw Amendment would be 
required in order for Council to consider his request further. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the March 23, 2020, Council Meeting, the following resolution was passed: 

NB2 DARYL JOHNSON - MANUFACTURED HOME PARK REZONING 

RESOLUTION NO. 051/20 
M/S Councillors Gibbs/ Summer 
THAT Staff research the request from Daryl Johnson for amending the zoning 
for the Manufactured Home Park to include Recreational Vehicles as a 
permitted use. 
CARRIED 

DISCUSSION: 

Current Land Use as per the Official Community Plan (OCP): Town Centre 
Town Centre sub-designation: Gateway Area. 
Current Zoning as per Bylaw 823, 2013: R3 Zone: ry,anufactured Home Park. 

An OCP Amendment is required to change the Jong-term Land Use designation 
for a subject property. If the zone that is proposed is not supported by the current 
Future Land Use, an OCP Amendment is required to change the Future Land 
Use. OCP amendment applications must always be accompanied by a rezoning 
application. Source: https:llwww.kelowna.calhomes-buildinq/propertv-developmentlrezoninq-ocp-amendment 

Allowing Recreational Vehicles (RV's) into the Town Centre Land Use area on a 
permanent or semi-permanent (i.e. seasonal) is not consistent with the General Strategy 
for the future objectives (i.e., type and character) for the Town Centre outlined in the 
OCP and therefore would be considered an amendment. 
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FINANCIAL: 

Should Mr. Johnson wish to proceed with submitting an OCP and Zoning requests, as 
per the Fees and Charges Bylaw 915, 2020, he would be required to complete an 
application form(s) and submit the required fee of: 

Amendment to the District's OCP and Zoning Bylaw (Combined): $1,500. 

1. All development application fees established are: 
a) non-refundable; and 
b) must be paid in full to the District of Hudson's Hope at the time of 

application. 

2. Any advertising costs associated with a development application must be paid 
by the applicant, including, but not limited to: newspapers ads, mail-outs, 
signage, notices, posters, and administrative costs including printing, postage 
and photocopying. 

Attachments: 

1. Request from Darryl Johnson dated Thursday, February 13, 2020. 
2. Bylaw No. 823, 2013, R3 Zone: Manufactured Home Park. 
3. Official Community Plan (OCP) - Town Centre Plan. 

Report Approved by: 
Chris Cvik, CAO 
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Thursday, February 13, 2020 8:19 PM D I ·-J O h n so n °' r-ry .., t --r:: . c· +- ~ ,_ 7,-()..., Je_y CcJu r 
tOLUV\ e.f)f'- 

Mayor Heiberg and Counsel 
I am asking for your consideration to make a change in the allowable within the Manufactured Home 
Park zone. I have had many requests to put RVs on my lot but at the present RVs are not allowed on 
MHPs. As I am the only MHP in Hudson's Hope and we will soon be losing some RV sites I am requesting 
to include a maximum of two RV sites. My park is already setup to accommodate this and it would make 
my business more sustainable. 

Without having extra income I fear I may not be able to sustain this BJ ,J2 basis- 
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12.0 R3 ZONE: MANUFACTURED HOME PARK 
The intent of the R3 zone is to permit existing manufactured home parks. 

12.1 Permitted Uses 

In the R3 zone, the following uses and no other uses are permitted: 

. 1 

.2 

. 3 

Accessory buildings and structures . 

Home occupations. 

Manufactured home park . 

12.2 Zone Specific Regulations 

REMINDER: 
recreational vehicles 
including campers, 

motorhomes, and tent 
trailers, must not be 
used as principal or 
accessory dwelling 
units as they do not 
meet the minimum 

requirements that are 
established in this 
hvlaw for sinolo- 

On a parcel located in an area zoned as R3, no building or structure will 
be constructed, located or altered, and no plan of subdivision approved which contravenes the 
regulations set out in this section. Column 1 sets out the matter to be regulated and Column 2 
sets out the regulations. 

ft"'"t~~d 7?:!f~,Jl:ltt,!f;J~(i~~J;J1lWcoCOM r-.r 'fi'ltr'"'t!l11'•1~11~·,~:il'~'t '"'1/l f·ftt,'l;;rt2Jy,~:7;'hc~~);;(fc'OT!O"MN''2J\llfil.fiii~t, ~1,~Nl~if~M~"!.'.fti.t,~1.,J~i1\'i~ 1(•~'t:1dH ~;tti;r""",..,_" "'~~"'~,.-~J,.,,,.~} Y ft t, ~,J: 'i'J(St -W'~i~ili'th,?J J,1t./L.i i,,,t;i,-'?sc~'\ X'/'&<f.tiat;w '"'"''-."'""'"''_"'"_'"''"',_,'lf ~ v,.; ~ 

.1 Maximum density 22 dwelllnq units per hectare 

.2 Maximum height of: 
• principal buildings 10 m 
• accessory bulldinqs and structures 5m 

.3 Minimum width of principal buildinqs 4.5 m 

.4 Minimum parcel size 2 hectares 

.5 Minimum frontage of: 
• Manufactured home park 50m 
• Individual manufactured home spaces 12 m 

.6 Minimum setback of principal buildings from: 
• front parcel line 4m 
• interior side parcel line 1.5 m 
• exterior side parcel line 3m 

• rear parcel line 6.5m 
.7 Maximum parcel coverage 50% 

12.3 Other Regulations 

The minimum parcel size requirement for manufactured homes parks does not apply to 
manufactured home parks that existed before the date of adoption of this Bylaw. 

34 
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Schedule B 
Official Community Plan 
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VISION 
The Town Centre Plan seeks to reflect these fundamental priorities identified in the ICSP: 

• We value and cultivate small town feel 

• We are a community that is open to accommodate a wide range of people, including families, 
youth and seniors 

• We are a community that provides opportunities for citizens and businesses 

• We will ensure that our community is built to last 

PRINCIPLES 
Town Centre Identity: Create an inviting and enjoyable town centre that is a destination and a home. 

Getting Around: Make Hudson's Hope's town centre an easy place to get around, in all seasons, for all 
pedestrians, cyclists, vehicles and seniors 

Places to Be: Create new and enhance existing formal and informal public gathering places in the town 
centre 

Places to Shop: Encourage and support retail and commercial businesses to locate in the town centre 

Things to Do: Support and plan community events and programming year-round in the town centre 

HUDSON'S HOPE'S TOWN CENTRE 
Hudson's Hope's town centre is located in the east 
half of the community and is within easy cycling and 
reasonable walking distance of most residents. It is in 
close proximity to the Peace River and contains 
several important community amenities. There are 
several vacant and underdeveloped parcels located 
in the town centre area, creating opportunity for new 
development. Current development in the town centre 
is largely vehicle-oriented, with buildings set back far 
from the street, often with a parking lot or grassed 
yard in front. Existing land use is primarily 
commercial and institutional, with low density 
residential towards the edges. 

Thompson /wo 

t;; GaylorAve 

f 

PockA.vo ... .. 
~l' ,, ... 

Figure 1: Town Centre Plan Boundary 
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STRATEGY 
Character Areas 
A community's character is developed through the combination of its built form and its people, which 
together create an overall sense of place. Town centres with a strong sense of place are the focal points 
of their community and attract people at all times of day with a variety of activities. 

Existing Conditions 

The town centre can be divided into three areas, each with its 
own features and potential. The Commercial Area is the largest 
part of downtown and contains the bulk of the town centre 
businesses and vacant land, along with a few residential 
properties. The Institutional Area contains a concentration of 
public facilities and civic buildings, and the Gateway Area 
centers around Beattie Drive and the entrances into the town 

generally share these characteristics: 

• Development is primarily 1-2 stories, generally 
single-use institutional or commercial, with low­ 
density residential on the edges of the town 
centie. 

• Buildings are set back from the street with 
parking or grassed lawn in front. 

• There is a low level of pedestrian activity on the 
streets. The pedestrian environment is not 
welcoming, there is minimal street furniture and 
few sidewalks, and there are no identifiable 
places on the street for people to gather casually 
and visit. 
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1. Post Office 8. Fire Department 
2. Historic Church 9. Municipal Hall 
3. Museum 10. Library 
4. Visitor's Centre 11. Senior's Centre 
5. RCMP 12. Bank 
6. Community Hall 13. Health Centre 
7.Curllng Rink 14.GroceryStore 

Figure 2: Town Centre Character- Existing 

Potential & Opportunity 

Facilitate intensification and development that builds upon and improves the unique character of the town 
centre to encourage business development, shopping, recreational uses and social gathering by locals 
and tourists alike. 

General Strategies 

• Encourage mixed use development that combines 
commercial and/or service uses on the main floor 
with up to 3 storeys of residential units above. 

• Improve signage, lighting, and street furniture such 
as benches, trash receptacles, and bike racks. 

• Encourage the rehabilitation and retention of 
historically significant buildings and sites. 

• Investigate opportunity to create a position whose 
responsibility would be to program events in the town centre. 
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- • - Town Centre boundary 

1, Post Office 8. Fire Department 
2. Historic Church 9. Municipal Hall 
3.Museum 10.llbrary 
4. Visitor's Centre 11. Senior's Centre 
5.RCMP 12.Bank 
6. Community Hall 13. Health Centre 
7. Curl Ing Rink 14. Grocery Store 

Gateway Area 

- lnstltutlonol Areo 

Figure 3: Town Centre Character- Potential & Opportunity 

Commercial Area 

The Commercial Area is the focus of the town centre, where locals come to shop, meet neighbours, and 
have a cup of coffee. Visitors recognize the area as the centre of the community. Promote investments in 
this area that will create a vibrant commercial core. 

• Consider incentives for commercial redevelopment and facade 
improvements. 

• Initiate/support the formation of rt Town Cantre Business 
Association or a corresponding Business Improvement Area. 

• Support and facilitate creative pilot projects such as seasonal 
patios and temporary road closures as a means of testing ideas 
for success before committing to them permanently. 

• Consider streetscape improvements to Gething Street and Beattie 
Drive to improve pedestrian access and experience, encouraging 
more people to visit the area. 
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Institutional Area 

The Institutional Area is characterized by the proximity of several public facilities and civic buildings. 
Reinforce this area as the civic centre of the community, and explore the opportunity to express what 
makes Hudson's Hope unique - its people, history, and beautiful natural setting. 

• Improve pedestrian accessibility and enhance pedestrian connections and wayfinding by updating 
signage for look-outs, civic buildings, and nearby destinations and attractions. 

• Reinforce and enhance the civic feel of the area by 
encouraging public amenities/institutions to locate in the 
area, and by encouraging landscape improvements that 
integrate with the streetscape and invite the public to 
inhabit the space. 

• Create a community focal point and gathering place by 
redeveloping the parking lot south of the Municipal Hall. 
This will help to connect Henry Stege Park to the broader 
pedestrian network and help establish the area as a destination. 

Gateway Area 

The Gateway Area will welcome visitors and residents into the town centre and express the sense of 
pride that the people of Hudson's Hope have for their community. Enhancing this area of the community 
can encourage passersby to stop and visit the interesting sites Hudson's Hope has to offer. 

• Entice visitors to stop at the Visitor's Centre with upgraded signage advertising its amenities 
(clean washrooms, rv parking, etc.), creating an opportunity to draw them further into the town 
centre. 

• Slow down Beattie Drive using traffic calming 
measures such as roundabouts and medians, 
along with a rich streetscape environment 
including landscaping, trees, and signage to 
establish a sense of arrival into the town centre 
and create a sense of place. 

• Strengthen visual and pedestrian connections 
to the Commercial Area through signage and streetscape improvements to encourage visitors to 
venture further into the community rather than passing straight through. 

• Improve pedestrian connections to facilitate easy crossing between Beattie Park/the Visitor's 
Centre and the Museum. 

• Engage local businesses and volunteer groups to promote and plan programming to attract 
visitors throughout the year. 

• Consider rescheduling Farmer's Market to the weekend to accommodate tourists. 
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• Promote local history and draw visitors into the downtown by developing a Historical Walking 
Tour. Consider interpretive signage throughout the town centre highlighting historical sites and 
people, with maps available at the tourist centre, museum, and local retailers. 

Circulation and Connections 
A community's circulation system is made up of roads, sidewalks and trails which connects its people to 
services, amenities and each other. It should be easy to navigate on foot, by wheelchair and in a vehicle, 
in all kinds of weather. 

Existing Conditions: 

• Sidewalk connections between potential 
pedestrian destinations are limited, though for 
the most part the street blocks are short and 
offer many route options 

• Hudson's Hope is compact, and distances 
between destinations within the townsite are 
easily walkable and bikeable 

• Winter environment can create challenging 
conditions for pedestrians, particularly seniors 
and others with reduced mobility 

• Highway 29/Beattie Drive has a highway 
character and is not integrated into the townsite 

• Road right-of-ways are generally very wide for 
the volume of traffic they must accommodate 

• There is no differentiation between commercial 
and residential streets 

• There is no sense of arrival when you enter the 
town centre 
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• • • • • Ex is ting sidew alk 

•••••• Ex isting tra il == 400m diameter• 5 
minute walking distance H Vlewpoi nt 

1. Post Office 8. Fire Department 
2. Historic Church 9. Municipal Hall 
3.Museum 10.library 
4. Visitor's Centre 11. Senior's Centre 
5.RCMP 12.Bank 
6. Community Hall 13. Health Centre 
7.Curllng Rink 14.GroceryStore 

Figure 4: Circulation & Connections - Existing 

Potential & Opportunity: 

Focus improvements on key street sections to help define the town centre, enhance connections between 
destinations, and improve active transportation opportunities in the area. 
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1. Post Office 8. Fire Department 
2. Historic Church 9. Municipal Hall 
3. Museum 10. library 
4. Visitor's Centre 11. Senior's Centre 
5. RCMP 12. Bank 
6. Community Hall 13. Health Centre 
7.Cu,rllng Rink 14, Grocery Store 

Figure 5: Circulation & Connections - Potential & Opportunity 

Beattie Drive 

Change function from a highway to a complete street to slow traffic, create a sense of place, and increase 
use as a pedestrian and bike route. 

• Employ traffic calming strategies such as the installation of central medians and/or reduce the 
carriageway to accommodate treed boulevards 

• Explore access management techniques to reduce pedestrian-vehicle conflicts, as there are 
currently many driveways that access directly onto Beattie Drive 

• Enhance accessibility for pedestrians by considering smaller corner radii and/or curb flares at 
intersections to facilitate easier pedestrian crossings 

• Improve facilities for cycling by considering options such as dedicated bike lanes, sharrows (bike 
route signage painted on roadway), or an asphalt multi-use trail on the north side of the street that 
would connect important destinations such as the school, Beattie Park, and the post office 

• Create a sense of arrival into the town centre; explore the opportunity for public art, banners, 
trees, hanging baskets or other features in a central median and along sidewalks 
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BEATT IE DRIVE - 27.Sm + R.O.W. 

BLVD 
/-- 4.25m+-+----B.Om------3.0m-+------B.Om-----.1--4,25m+-I 
WALK BLVD PARKING BIKE LANE BIKE PARKING BLVD WALK 

Figure 6: Beattie Drive 

Gething Street/Dudley Drive/Kyllo Street 

• Create a distinct sense of place and pleasant pedestrian realm by considering the installation of: 

o Treed boulevards where the ROW width allows 

o A wider sidewalk along the north side of Dudley Drive that would accommodate outdoor 
seating areas on the sunniest side for the street 

o Light standards or decorative poles with banners and hanging flower baskets 

o Central medians with plantings where Dudley Drive intersects Kyllo Street and Gething 
Street 

• Connect focal points and attractions by completing the pedestrian circulation system. Consider 
installing sidewalks on both sides of the streets, prioritizing the east sides of Kyllo Street and 
Gething Street. 

• Enhance accessibility and safety of pedestrians. Curb extensions and smaller corner radii at 
intersections can facilitate easier pedestrian crossings, and parallel parking along the sides of the 
streets helps to buffer pedestrians from traffic. 

GETHING/KYLLO/DUDLEY - 20.0m R.O.W. 

WALK BLVD PARKING LANE 

LANE 

LANE PARKING BLVD WALK 
f-4.0m-...._-----12.0m-----~'--4.0m-/ 

-/, 

Figure 7: Gething Street/Dudley Drive/Ky/Jo Street 

EX.JS TING RESIDENTIAL 
ON DUDLEY 
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Focal Points 

A community's focal points are the places that make it unique and act as destinations for locals and 
visiting tourists. 

Existing: 

• Visual and physical access to the river is limited by steep slopes and existing development along 
the top-of-bank. Existing viewpoints of the Peace River are spectacular but are not easy to find. 

• Community signage is weathered and inconsistent in style and theme. 

• There is no sense of arrival or obvious boundary around the downtown area. 

• The Visitor's Centre is a gateway to the community for tourists. 

~ Routes Into Town Centre 

e-i Viewpoint 
~"~ :, • Existing gateway 
1o,.~ 

Figure 8: Focal Points - Existing 
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Potential & Opportunity: 

Emphasize and improve existing gateways and viewpoints through upgrades to signage, access, 
amenities, and landscaping. 

~ Routes Into Town Centre 

~ Viewpoint 

~"~ :i • Existing gateway 
~ .. "" 

Figure 9: Focal Points - Potential & Opportunity 

Gateway: Beattie Drive/Canyon Drive *photo examples of roundabouts 

This intersection is a significant node in the community. It is part of the primary route for people entering 
the townsite and the adjacent post office is a daily destination for many. There is opportunity to recreate it 
as an impactful gateway to the downtown. 

• Investigate traffic calming measures such as a roundabout at this major entrance into the 
community. A roundabout calms traffic and can often move it along more efficiently than a four­ 
way stop or signalized intersection. 
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• Create a sense of arrival with a central feature such as landscaping, welcome signage, or public 
art. 

• Improve pedestrian connectivity to the post office, a major community destination, by extending 
the sidewalk up Beattie through the intersection. 

Figure 10: Gateway at Beattie Drive and Canyon Drive 

Gateway: Beattie Drive from Lemieux Street to Kyllo Street 

This block marks the west boundary of the town centre and is a significant entrance point into the area. 
Creating a sense of arrival into the town centre can help establish the area as a destination for locals and 
visitors. 

• Create a sense of arrival with features such as landscaping, welcome signage, or public art. The 
road right-of-way on the south side of the Beattie Drive carriageway is quite wide, underutilized, 
and offers an easy location for gateway improvements. 

Focal Point: Southwest corner of Beattie Drive/Dudley Drive 

The SW corner of Beattie Drive and Dudley Drive is the edge of a significant redevelopment site and 
could become a focal point for the Commercial Area. The small lot on the corner designated as 
Park/Open Space is vacant, which creates an opportunity for a small public gathering space to be 
developed. 
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• Create a sense of significance by exploring options for public art, a clock tower, etc. to establish 
the focal point. Other public realm enhancements could include public seating, landscaping, 
and/or a small plaza. 

• Active frontages support a vibrant public realm. Ensure future building on adjacent property fronts 
the corner as well as Dudley Drive with transparent windows and entrances at street level. 

Viewpoints 

Views of the Peace River from the townsite are spectacular all year round; though access from the 
downtown area view is limited to a few areas. The available viewpoints are valuable community amenities 
to be enhanced and enjoyed. 

• Museum 

o Wayfinding signage at Beattie Drive will help to 
identify the viewpoint's existence to visitors 

o Improve universal access by paving the path 
from the museum to the viewpoint 

• Library/Senior's Centre (New Horizons) 

o Improve wayfinding by installing identifying 
signage at the street as the viewpoint is hidden and tucked in behind the Library 

o Promote the viewpoint as a destination by considering enhancements to the public realm 
between Library and Senior's Centre that could include interpretive signage, seating, 
fencing, etc. 

• Riverside Trail 

o Improve visual and physical access to the 
Peace River by exploring the opportunity to 
connect viewpoints and expand the trail 
network with a trail above the river if Site C is 
constructed 
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Redevelopment Opportunities 

A community is often judged based on the quality and character of its downtown environment. As it will 
impact the entire townsite, it is important that redevelopment contributes positively to the function, 
character, and prosperity of the area. 

Existing: 

• There are numerous vacant and underutilized 
parcels of land located throughout the townsite, 
many in the town centre area 

• Expansion of the townsile is constrained by natural 
features (steep slopes, river) offering opportunity for 
growth through densification and infill development 
in the town centre area 

Figure 11: Redevelopment Opportunities - Existing 
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Potential & Opportunity: 

Redevelop the vacant and underdeveloped land in the town centre in a manner that contributes to the 
vitality, character and sustainability of the townsite as a whole. 

- • - Town Centre boundary 

- Vacant land (private) 

- Vacant land (municipally 
owned) 

- Vacant land 
(owned by other levels of 
government) 

IIJIE Key redevelopment site ~"~ I • Proposed gateway ~"~"' 
Figure 12: Redevelopment Opportunities - Potential & Opportunity 

Vacant land fronting Dudley Drive: 

This block of land is the largest vacant parcel in the town centre and its redevelopment has the greatest 
potential to positively impact the town centre area. 

• Promote this land as a priority redevelopment site and explore options to encourage it's 
redevelopment, including such things as: 

o Meeting with landowners to understand their short and long term objectives and to 
communicate the significance of the site to the town centre 

o Investigating potential impediments and incentives to redevelopment such as site 
contamination, incentive programs, etc. 
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• Create a sense of vibrancy in the town centre by encouraging a combination of commercial and 
multi-family residential developments. Mixed use development brings people to the area during 
business hours for services, and is occupied by residents in the evenings. 

• Encourage active land uses that entice people to visit the town centre such as bakeries, coffee 
shops, fitness centre, etc. 

• Encourage active frontages that engage the street and create a pleasant pedestrian environment 
by creating a strong street edge with large, transparent windows and public seating/patios that 
take advantage of the southern exposure. - 

• Discourage the development of isolated buildings surrounded by surface parking. This weakens 
the public realm and discourages pedestrian activity. 

• Redevelopment on the corner sites at Beattie Drive/Dudley Drive and Gathing StreeUDudley 
Drive should front both streets as well as the corner to create a strong presence and sense of 
arrival into the town centre. 

• Opportunity for public art installation, clock tower, etc. on the corner of Beattie Drive/Dudley Drive 
as future development on that site will become a focal point and part of the gateway to the town 
centre for visitors approaching from the north. 

Figure 13: Dudley Drive Redevelopment Site 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. THAT Council approve the five-year lease agreement from May 1, 2020 – April
30, 2025, with the Hudson’s Hope Lions Club for the use of the Community Hall;
and

2. THAT Council approves the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia
(MIABC) Service Provider Agreements between the District of Hudson’s Hope
and the Hudson’s Hope Lions Club with the date as set out in the Service
Provider Agreement; and

3. THAT Council approve the five-year lease agreement from May 1, 2020 – April
30, 2025, with the Hudson’s Hope Community Club for the use of the Kitchen
Space in the Community Hall; and

4. THAT Council approve the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia
(MIABC) Service Provider Agreement between the District of Hudson’s Hope
and the Hudson’s Hope Community Club with the date as set out in the Service
Provider Agreement.

BACKGROUND: 

At the Council Meeting on February 24, 2020, Council passed the following resolution 
in relation to item SR-1 on the Council Agenda: 

SR1 OPERATION OF THE COMMUNITY HALL 

RESOLUTION NO. 035/20 
M/S Councillors Markin / Gibbs 
1. That effective March 1, 2020, Council approves the District of Hudson’s Hope

assume the responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the Community
Hall;

2. That Council approves that the District negotiate a user agreement with the
District of Hudson’s Hope Community Club for the operation of the kitchen; and

3. That Council direct Administration to work with the Hudson’s Hope Lions Club
on a Lease Agreement for Council’s consideration on the continued use of
space within the Community Hall by the Lions.

CARRIED 

RFD#:       CC-2020-29 Date:  April 6, 2020 
Meeting#:  CM042720 Originator: Chris Cvik 
RFD TITLE:     Community Hall Lease Agreements 
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DISCUSSION: 

Administration worked on draft lease agreements with both community organizations.  
Both organizations have reviewed the documents and are comfortable entering into 
lease agreements as outlined in the drafts. 

The Service Provider Agreements are required in order to include the two 
organizations under the District’s policy for commercial general liability insurance.  
Once accepted by MIABC, the Clubs are entitled to full coverage, but only for services 
provided for, or on behalf of, the District.   

It is important to make Council aware, that by covering the Clubs under the District’s 
Liability Insurance policy, that the District’s deductible would apply to claims brought 
against the associate members “the Clubs” and the District would be responsible for 
the payment of any costs incurred below the deductible. In addition, all claims brought 
against the District will form part of the District’s claims history and experience rating. 

FINANCIAL: 

The Lions Club and the Hudson’s Hope Community Club will each be required to 
reimburse the District the $250 premium for coverage under the Associate Member 
program through MIABC. 

Attachments:  

1. Five-year lease agreement from May 1, 2020 – April 30, 2025, with the Lions
Club for the use of the Community Hall.

2. Service Provider Agreement between the District of Hudson’s Hope and the
Lions Club.

3. Five-year lease agreement from May 1, 2020 – April 30, 2025, with the
Hudson’s Hope Community Club for the use of Kitchen Space at the Community
Hall.

4. Service Provider Agreement between the District of Hudson’s Hope and the
Hudson’s Hope Community Club.

Report Approved by: _________________________ 
Chris Cvik, CAO 
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d 
THE HUDSON’S HOPE LIONS CLUB BUILDING LEASE 

THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the __ day of April, 2020. 

BETWEEN: 

DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE, a municipality incorporated under the laws of 
British Columbia and having its office at Box 330, Hudson's Hope, B.C. V0C 1V0 

(the "District") 

AND: 

THE HUDSON’S HOPE LIONS CLUB, a service organization that supports the 
community of Hudson’s Hope and having its office at Box 444, Hudson's Hope, B.C. 
V0C1V0 

(the "Club") 

WHEREAS: 

A. The District is the registered owner in fee simple of the property legally described as:

Parcel Identifier: 013-023-519 
Lot 10 
Block 2 
Section 18 
Township 81 
Range 25 West of the 6th Meridian Peace River District 
Plan PGP4115 

("Lot 10"); 

B. The area of Lot 10 where all the premises commonly known as the "Community Hall"
(the Building) is situated, is referred to in this Agreement as the "Land";

C. The Club desires to lease the Building for the purpose of operating a service club and
the District agrees to lease the Building to the Club on the terms and subject to the
conditions set out in this Lease;

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the premises and payments under this Lease and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which both parties hereby 
acknowledge, the District and the Club covenant and agree as follows: 
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Lease of Building 

1. The District hereby leases to the Club the Building (the "Lease") for a term of five (5) years
commencing on May 1, 2020 and terminating on April 30, 2025, (the 'Term"), to have and
to hold for the Term, and the Club does hereby accept the lease of the Building, subject to
all the covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Lease.

Option to Renew Lease 

2. The Tenant may, if not in default under this Lease, renew this Lease for a further term of 5
years on the same terms and conditions except this renewal option, which is modified
accordingly each time. This option may be exercised by the Club giving notice in writing to
the District in the manner provided for giving notices not earlier than 6 months and not later
than 90 days prior to the expiry of the Term or the renewal of the Term, as the case may
be.

Ownership of Building 

3. The District and the Club agree that the title to and ownership of the Building was, is and
will be at all times, before, during and after the Term, vested in the District.

Ownership of Equipment 

4. The District agrees that the furnishings and non-fixed equipment in the Building belong to
the District.

Parking License 

5. The District hereby grants to the Club the right to enter upon those paved parking in order
to use the Parking Area only for vehicle parking purposes and only in association with use
of the Building.

Building Accepted "As Is" 

6. The Club accepts the Building "as is" and as being fit for the Club's purposes and the Club
acknowledges that the District has made no representations or warranties whatsoever
respecting the Building.

Use of Building 

7. The Club shall use the Building for the purpose of operating a service organization, which
may include a lobby, an administrative office, meeting rooms, washrooms, kitchen and a
lounge for the consumption of food and drinks, including alcoholic drinks.

No Abandonment 

8. The Club shall not abandon the Building or leave the Building vacant or unoccupied or
otherwise fail to use the Building as a service organization for more than 30 consecutive
days.

Public Use of Building 

9. The Club shall at all times during the Term allow members of the public to become members
of the Club.
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Rent 

10. As payment for the Lease of the Building and the Parking License, the Club shall pay to the
District rent (the "Rent") in the amount of $950 per year for each year of the five-year Term.
Details of the rent are as follows:

• $600.00 for Approximately 24 Meetings Per Year (at 25.00 per meeting) – Approximately
First and Second Thursdays (Lions Club and Junior Lions)

• $100.00 Use of the Bar Storage Cabinets and the basement lockup.
• $250.00 Associate Member Insurance under the District Policy with MIABC

Contracts for Utilities 

11. The District is responsible for the payment of utilities for the Community Hall including: gas,
heating fuel, telephone service, cable, satellite, telecommunications service, electricity,
power or communication service rendered in respect of the Building.

No Assigning or Subletting 

12. The Club shall not assign this Agreement, and the Club shall not sublet all or any part of
the Building without prior written consent of the District in each instance.

Compliance with Laws 

13. The Club will at all times use and occupy the Building and use the Parking Area in
compliance with all statutes, laws, bylaws, regulations and orders of any authority having
jurisdiction and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all relating to environmental
protection  and safety and any contaminant, pollutant, dangerous substance, liquid waste,
industrial waste, hauled liquid waste, or hazardous material or hazardous substance,
including all the rules,  regulations, policies, guidelines, criteria or the like made under or
pursuant to any such laws.

No Nuisance 

14. The Club will not carry on, or suffer or permit to be carried on, on the Land or Building any
act, matter or thing which will or may constitute a nuisance or an unreasonable annoyance
to the District, to any occupant of lands and premises in the vicinity of the Land, and to the
public generally.

No Alterations 

15. The Club may not expand, alter or improve the Building without the consent of the District,
which consent may not be unreasonably refused and which consent may include conditions
imposed by the District.

Repairs and Maintenance of Building 

16. The District agrees that throughout the Term, the District will attempt to keep the Building
in a state of good repair as a prudent owner would do but not affect minor repairs less than
two hundred dollars ($200.00) or household duties. Major repairs will be considered as part
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of the District’s annual budgeting process. 

Public Safety 

17. The Club shall take all possible precautions to ensure the safety of persons using the
Building.

Workers Compensation 

18. The Club, at its cost, will carry and pay for full workers' compensation coverage in respect
of all workers, employees and other applicable persons that may be employed by the Club.

Insurance Clauses 

19. The District agrees to obtain commercial general liability insurance coverage from the
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (MIABC) naming the Club as an
Additional Named Insured entitled to full coverage in the amount of $5,000,000 with respect
to third party liability claims arising from the provision of the agreed service. The Club
agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District, its agents, servants,
employees, trustees, officers and representatives from any liability, loss or damage which
the District may suffer as a result of any claims, demands, costs, actions, causes of actions,
or judgments, including legal fees, asserted against or incurred by the District arising out
of, during, or as a result of the provision of services except such liability, loss, or damage
which is the result of, or arising out of, the sole negligence of the District.

Indemnity 

20. The Club will and hereby does indemnify and save harmless the District and its elected and
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and others of the District from any and all
liabilities, damages, expenses, costs (including actual costs of professional advisors),
claims, demands, suits, actions or other harm whatsoever, whether relating to death, bodily
injury, property loss, property damage or other consequential loss or damage in connect
with the Building.

Survival of Indemnity and Release 

21. The indemnities and release contained in this Agreement will survive the expiration or
earlier termination of the Term.

Club's Corporate Representations and Warranties 

22. The Club covenants with, and represents and warrants to, the District that:

(a) The Club has the power and capacity to enter into this Agreement and to comply with
and perform this Lease Agreement.

Notice 

23. Any notice delivered by hand or sent by facsimile transmission shall be deemed to be given
and received on the day it is sent. Any notice mailed shall be deemed to be given and
received on the third day after it is posted.
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24. Notices to the District must be addressed to the attention of the "Clerk".

Notice of Default 

25. If the Club fails to pay the Rent, Additional Rent or otherwise breaches  this Agreement,
the District may give the Club notice in writing of the default and if the default is curable,
the time within which the default must be cured by the Club or no time for cure in the event
of an emergency or urgent circumstances, as determined by  the District, or where  the
Club has failed to keep in force the required insurance.

Condition of Building 

26. At the expiration or earlier termination of the Term, the Club shall leave the Building  in a
clean, tidy, uncontaminated, safe, proper, and vacant condition, clear of all personal
property, and all fixtures or improvements constructed, installed or affixed to the Building
by the Club  shall become the absolute property of the District free of all encumbrances
without payment of any compensation to the Club, unless the District, in its sole discretion,
requires the Club to remove any or all or any fixtures or improvements installed by the Club,
in which case the Club shall do so within 15 days after expiry or early termination of this
Agreement.

No Obligations on District 

27. The rights given to the District by this Agreement are permissive only and nothing in this
Agreement:

(a) imposes any duty of care or other legal duty of any kind under the law or tort or
otherwise on the District to the Club or to anyone else;

(b) obliges the District to enforce this Agreement, which is a policy matter within the sole
discretion of the District.

Severance 

28. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any portion of this Agreement invalid, the invalid
portion shall be severed and the decision that it is invalid shall not affect the validity of the
remainder of this Agreement.

Entire Agreement 

29. The provisions of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the District and
the Club and supersede all previous communications, representations, warranties,
covenants and agreements whether verbal or written between the parties with respect to
this subject matter, except the Assignment Agreement.
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Time of Essence 

30. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

DATED the ______ day of April, 2020. 

On Behalf of the  On Behalf of the 
District of Hudson’s Hope  Lions Club 

Name:__________________________ Name:___________________________ 

Title:___________________________ Title:____________________________ 

Signature:_______________________ Signature:________________________ 

Date: _______________________ 
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SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

This Service Provider Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day of May, 2020 
by and in between the District of Hudson’s Hope (the “Local Government”) and the Hudson’s Hope 
Lions Club (the “Service Provider”). 

The Service Provider agrees to provide the following services for or on behalf of the Local Government: 

Founded in 1967, the Hudson's Hope Lions Club strives to serve the community with whatever 
services are needed.  This could include planning and hosting community family and social 
events such as the Mother’s Day Steak & Lobster Dinner and Social, the Community Christmas 
Dinner, and the Halloween Dance.  Hosting these events is an important part of building and 
maintaining a small-town sense of community and the Local Government is fully supportive of 
groups that volunteer to organize these types of events. 

 The term of the Agreement is from the 1st day of May, 2020 until the 30th day of April, 2025.

While providing the agreed service, the Service Provider agrees to comply with: all applicable 
laws, rules and regulations; the practices, procedures and policies of the Local Government; and any 
special instructions given to the Service Provider by representative(s) of the Local Government. 

The Local Government agrees to obtain commercial general liability insurance coverage from the 
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (MIABC) naming the Service Provider as an 
Additional Named Insured entitled to full coverage in the amount of $5,000,000 with respect to third 
party liability claims arising from the provision of the agreed service.  The Service Provider agrees to 
carry its own statutory worker’s compensation insurance and automobile liability insurance, if 
appropriate. 

The Service Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Local Government, its agents, 
servants, employees, trustees, officers and representatives from any liability, loss or damage which the 
Local Government may suffer as a result of any claims, demands, costs, actions, causes of actions, or 
judgments, including legal fees, asserted against or incurred by the Local Government arising out of, 
during, or as a result of the provision of services outlined in the Agreement except such liability, loss, or 
damage which is the result of, or arising out of, the sole negligence of the Local Government or that is 
covered by the MIABC liability insurance policy. 

 The Local Government agrees to be responsible for any and all deductible amounts including any
claim expenses incurred and policy premium payments.
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The Local Government reserves the right to terminate this Agreement and the associated commercial 
general liability insurance coverage provided to the Service Provider by the MIABC at any time upon 
written notification to the Service Provider of the termination. 

ON BEHALF OF THE ON BEHALF OF THE 
DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE HUDSON’S HOPE LIONS CLUB 

Name: Name: 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Title: Title: 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Signature: Signature: 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Date: Date: 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
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d 
THE HUDSON’S HOPE COMMUNITY CLUB BUILDING LEASE 

THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the __ day of April, 2020. 

BETWEEN: 

DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE, a municipality incorporated under the laws of 
British Columbia and having its office at Box 330, Hudson's Hope, B.C. V0C1V0 

(the "District") 

AND: 

THE HUDSON’S HOPE COMMUNITY CLUB, (formerly the Women’s Club) a 
service organization that supports the community of Hudson’s Hope and having its 
office at Box 443, Hudson's Hope, B.C. V0C1V0 

 (the "Club") 

WHEREAS: 

A. The District is the registered owner in fee simple of the property legally described as:

Parcel Identifier: 013-023-519 
Lot 10 
Block 2 
Section 18 
Township 81 
Range 25 West of the 6th Meridian Peace River District 
Plan PGP4115 

("Lot 10"); 

B. The area of Lot 10 where all the premises commonly known as the "Community Hall"
(the Building) is situated, is referred to in this Agreement as the "Land";

C. The Club desires to lease the “Kitchen Area” for the purpose of operating community
kitchen on a rental basis and the District agrees to lease the Kitchen Area to the Club
on the terms and subject to the conditions set out in this Lease;

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the premises and payments under this Lease and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which both parties hereby 
acknowledge, the District and the Club covenant and agree as follows: 
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Lease of Kitchen Area 

1. The District hereby leases to the Club the Kitchen Area of the Community Hall (the "Lease")
for a term of five (5) years commencing on May 1, 2020 and terminating on April 30, 2025,
(the 'Term"), to have and to hold for the Term, and the Club does hereby accept the lease
of the Kitchen Area, subject to all the covenants, conditions and agreements contained in
this Lease.

Option to Renew Lease 

2. The Tenant may, if not in default under this Lease, renew this Lease for a further term of 5
years on the same terms and conditions except this renewal option, which is modified
accordingly each time. This option may be exercised by the Club giving notice in writing to
the District in the manner provided for giving notices not earlier than 6 months and not later
than 90 days prior to the expiry of the Term or the renewal of the Term, as the case may
be.

Ownership of Building 

3. The District and the Club agree that the title to and ownership of the Kitchen Area was, is
and will be at all times, before, during and after the Term, vested in the District.

Ownership of Equipment 

4. The District and the Club agree that the title to and ownership of the appliances located in
the Kitchen Area are vested in the District.  The District and the Club further agree the title
to and ownership of supplies in the Kitchen Area including meal preparation (i.e., food
preparation table) and serving utensils are owned by the Club.

Parking License 

5. The District hereby grants to the Club the right to enter upon those paved parking in order
to use the Parking Area only for vehicle parking purposes and only in association with use
of the Kitchen Area.

Kitchen Area Accepted "As Is" 

6. The Club accepts the Kitchen Area "as is" and as being fit for the Club's purposes and the
Club acknowledges that the District has made no representations or warranties whatsoever
respecting the Kitchen Area.

Use of Kitchen Area 

7. The Club shall use the Kitchen Area for the purpose of operating a kitchen.
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No Abandonment 

8. The Club shall not abandon the Kitchen Area or leave the Kitchen Area vacant or
unoccupied or otherwise fail to use the Kitchen Area as a service organization for more
than 30 consecutive days.

Public Use of Building 

9. The Club shall at all times during the term allow members of the public to use the Kitchen
Area according to any terms agreed to between the Club and the person(s) making
application to use the Kitchen Area.

Rent 

10. As payment for the Lease of the Kitchen Area, the Club shall pay to the District rent (the
"Rent") in the amount of $250 per year for each year of the five-year Term.  Details of the
rent are as follows:

• $250.00 Associate Member Insurance under the District Policy with MIABC

Contracts for Utilities 

11. The District is responsible for the payment of utilities for the Community Hall including: gas,
heating fuel, telephone service, cable, satellite, telecommunications service, electricity,
power or communication service rendered in respect of the Kitchen Area.

No Assigning or Subletting 

12. The Club shall not assign this Agreement, and the Club shall not sublet all or any part of
the Kitchen Area without prior written consent of the District in each instance.  Assignment
shall not be unreasonably withheld by the District.

Compliance with Laws 

13. The Club will at all times use and occupy the Kitchen Area in compliance with all statutes,
laws, bylaws, regulations and orders of any authority having jurisdiction and, without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, all relating to environmental  protection  and safety and any
contaminant, pollutant, dangerous substance, liquid waste, industrial waste, hauled liquid
waste, or hazardous material or hazardous substance, including all the rules,  regulations,
policies, guidelines, criteria or the like made under or pursuant to any such laws.

No Nuisance 

14. The Club will not carry on, or suffer or permit to be carried on, in the Kitchen Area any act,
matter or thing which will or may constitute a nuisance or an unreasonable annoyance to
the District, and to the public generally.

No Alterations 

15. The Club may not expand, alter or improve the Kitchen Area without the consent of the
District, which consent may not be unreasonably refused and which consent may include
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conditions imposed by the District. 

Repairs and Maintenance of Kitchen Area 

16. The District agrees that throughout the Term, the District will attempt to keep the Kitchen
Area in a state of good repair as a prudent owner would do but not affect minor repairs less
than two hundred dollars ($200.00) or household duties. Major repairs will be considered
as part of the District’s annual budgeting process.

Public Safety 

17. The Club shall take all possible precautions to ensure the safety of persons using the
Kitchen Area.

Workers Compensation 

18. The Club, at its cost, will carry and pay for full workers' compensation coverage in respect
of all workers, employees and other applicable persons that may be employed by the Club.

Insurance Clause 

19. The District agrees to obtain commercial general liability insurance coverage from the
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (MIABC) naming the Club as an
Additional Named Insured entitled to full coverage in the amount of $5,000,000 with respect
to third party liability claims arising from the provision of the agreed service. The Club
agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District, its agents, servants,
employees, trustees, officers and representatives from any liability, loss or damage which
the District may suffer as a result of any claims, demands, costs, actions, causes of actions,
or judgments, including legal fees, asserted against or incurred by the District arising out
of, during, or as a result of the provision of services except such liability, loss, or damage
which is the result of, or arising out of, the sole negligence of the District.

Indemnity 

20. The Club will and hereby does indemnify and save harmless the District and its elected and
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and others of the District from any and all
liabilities, damages, expenses, costs (including actual costs of professional advisors),
claims, demands, suits, actions or other harm whatsoever, whether relating to death, bodily
injury, property loss, property damage or other consequential loss or damage in connect
with the Kitchen Area.

Survival of Indemnity and Release 

21. The indemnities and release contained in this Agreement will survive the expiration or
earlier termination of the Term.

Club's Corporate Representations and Warranties 

22. The Club covenants with, and represents and warrants to, the District that:

(a) The Club has the power and capacity to enter into this Agreement and to comply with
and perform this Lease Agreement.
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Notice 

23. Any notice delivered by hand or sent by facsimile transmission shall be deemed to be given
and received on the day it is sent. Any notice mailed shall be deemed to be given and
received on the third day after it is posted.

24. Notices to the District must be addressed to the attention of the "Clerk".

Notice of Default 

25. If the Club fails to pay the Rent, Additional Rent or otherwise breaches  this Agreement,
the District may give the Club notice in writing of the default and if the default is curable,
the time within which the default must be cured by the Club or no time for cure in the event
of an emergency or urgent circumstances, as determined by  the District, or where  the
Club has failed to keep in force the required insurance.

Condition of Kitchen Area 

26. At the expiration or earlier termination of the Term, the Club shall leave the Kitchen Area
in a clean, tidy, uncontaminated, safe, proper, and vacant condition, clear of all personal
property, and all fixtures or improvements constructed, installed or affixed to the Kitchen
Area by the Club  shall become the absolute property of the District free of all
encumbrances without payment of any compensation to the Club, unless the District, in its
sole discretion, requires the Club to remove any or all or any fixtures or improvements
installed by the Club, in which case the Club shall do so within 15 days after expiry or early
termination of this Agreement.

No Obligations on District 

27. The rights given to the District by this Agreement are permissive only and nothing in this
Agreement:

(a) imposes any duty of care or other legal duty of any kind under the law or tort or
otherwise on the District to the Club or to anyone else;

(b) obliges the District to enforce this Agreement, which is a policy matter within the sole
discretion of the District.

Severance 

28. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any portion of this Agreement invalid, the invalid
portion shall be severed and the decision that it is invalid shall not affect the validity of the
remainder of this Agreement.

Entire Agreement 

29. The provisions of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the District and
the Club and supersede all previous communications, representations, warranties,
covenants and agreements whether verbal or written between the parties with respect to
this subject matter, except the Assignment Agreement.

Council Agenda - April 27, 2020 Page 84 of 159



Time of Essence 

30. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

DATED the _______ day of April, 2020. 

On Behalf of the  On Behalf of the  
District of Hudson’s Hope  Hudson’s Hope Community Club 

Name:__________________________ Name:___________________________ 

Title:___________________________ Title:____________________________ 

Signature:_______________________ Signature:________________________ 

Date: _______________________ 
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SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

This Service Provider Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day of May, 2020 
by and in between the District of Hudson’s Hope (the “Local Government”) and the Hudson’s Hope 
Community Club (the “Service Provider”). 

The Service Provider agrees to provide the following services for or on behalf of the Local Government: 

Formerly known as the Women’s Club, the Hudson’s Hope Community Club is responsible for 
the operation of the Kitchen Space in the Community Hall.  The Kitchen Space is used for 
weddings, funerals and other community events where food is served.   Having a group available 
to help organize and host these food events is an important part of building and maintaining a 
small-town sense of community and the Local Government is fully supportive of groups that 
volunteer to organize these types of events. 

 The term of the Agreement is from the 1st day of May, 2020 until the 30th day of April, 2025.

While providing the agreed service, the Service Provider agrees to comply with: all applicable 
laws, rules and regulations; the practices, procedures and policies of the Local Government; and any 
special instructions given to the Service Provider by representative(s) of the Local Government. 

The Local Government agrees to obtain commercial general liability insurance coverage from the 
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (MIABC) naming the Service Provider as an 
Additional Named Insured entitled to full coverage in the amount of $5,000,000 with respect to third 
party liability claims arising from the provision of the agreed service.  The Service Provider agrees to 
carry its own statutory worker’s compensation insurance and automobile liability insurance, if 
appropriate. 

The Service Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Local Government, its agents, 
servants, employees, trustees, officers and representatives from any liability, loss or damage which the 
Local Government may suffer as a result of any claims, demands, costs, actions, causes of actions, or 
judgments, including legal fees, asserted against or incurred by the Local Government arising out of, 
during, or as a result of the provision of services outlined in the Agreement except such liability, loss, or 
damage which is the result of, or arising out of, the sole negligence of the Local Government or that is 
covered by the MIABC liability insurance policy. 

 The Local Government agrees to be responsible for any and all deductible amounts including any
claim expenses incurred and policy premium payments.
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The Local Government reserves the right to terminate this Agreement and the associated commercial 
general liability insurance coverage provided to the Service Provider by the MIABC at any time upon 
written notification to the Service Provider of the termination. 

ON BEHALF OF THE ON BEHALF OF THE 
DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE HUDSON’S HOPE LIONS CLUB 

Name: Name: 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Title: Title: 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Signature: Signature: 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Date: Date: 
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. THAT Council provide direction to Administration regarding the operation of the
Swimming Pool for the 2020 season in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.

BACKGROUND: 

The District of Hudson’s Hope outdoor swimming pool usually targets the May long 
weekend as the opening date.  This year, the COVID-19 Pandemic has resulted in pool 
closures across the Province.  It is unknown at this time whether the District swimming 
pool will be able to open as planned or at all this summer. 

DISCUSSION: 

The District is still in the process of hiring Pool and Visitor centre staff to operate the 
Pool and Visitor Centre this summer.  As discussed previously, if the Visitor Centre and 
Pool do not open, or open later than scheduled, these employees would be offered 
positions within Public Works.  

To get the pool ready for the season, Public Works staff clean and inspect the pool, fill 
it full of water and test all of the equipment.  This process is set to start on April 27th.   

Administration is bringing the Options to Consider information forward for a general 
discussion.  If the pool does not open as scheduled, there will be a ‘point-in-time’ 
where a decision to not open pool for the entire 2020 season will have to be made.  
Administration does not have a set-date for this, but it is something that Council will 
need to be aware of. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Swimming Pool Operation 2020 – Options to Consider

__________________________ 
Chris Cvik, CAO 

RFD#:       CC-2020-41 Date:   April 22, 2020 
Meeting#:  CM042720 Originator: Chris Cvik, CAO 
RFD TITLE:    Swimming Pool Operation - 2020 
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Page 2 of 2 

Swimming Pool Operation - 2020 
Options to Consider 

Option 1: Cleaning and Testing 
Clean the Swimming Pool, inspect the surface condition (wearing and tearing) by 
internal staff, fix the minor deficiencies by internal staff, fill the pool full with water, test 
the chlorine injector, test the back wash, test the glycol water heating system, and leave 
it for the season without doing anything else (OR empty the pool after all testing). If an 
inspection reveals that major repairs are required, then a Pool Repair contractor will 
have to be hired. There is some money put aside in the operating budget for this 
purpose.  
The Staff time required for this work would be 2 weeks with 2 Staff, and with cleaning 
and testing scheduled to commence on April 27, 2020.  In addition, cleaning materials 
and equipment will be needed. The challenges of keeping the Pool filled with water and 
not operating is that algae may form, which will require fully draining the Pool, washing 
again and then refilling.  The time required for restarting would be another 2 weeks. 
Estimated cost: $18,000 for PW Staff, hiring equipment, materials for cleaning. 

Option 2:  Cleaning, Testing and Minimal (slight) Operation 
In addition to performing the job mentioned in Option -1 (Cleaning and Testing), the 
Swimming Pool would run with minimal operation. The water flow, chlorine and 
frequency of back washes would be reduced to half or as low as permitted. This will 
continue until either the Pool opens to the public, or to the end of the season or a 
decision is made to shut down the Pool for the season.  
In addition to the required Staff time, materials and equipment as mentioned in the 
Option-1, there will be operational costs, although reduced capacity, including 
chemicals, energy, water etc. The advantage of this option is that the Pool can be 
opened to the Public at any time. However, there are unnecessary operational costs. 
Estimated cost: $47,000 (PW Staff $12,000, Gas electricity: $9,000, O & M: $26,000) 

Option 3:  Cleaning, Testing and Full Operation for the Season (14 weeks) 
The water flow will be full, chlorine injection will be full, etc. 
In addition to performing the job mentioned in Option -1 (Cleaning and Testing), the 
Swimming Pool would run with full operation with or without any use. The water flow, 
chlorine injection, back washes, heating of water, etc. will be normal as if the Pool is 
open to the Public, so the advantage is that the Pool can be opened to the Public at any 
time.  This would continue until either the end of the season or if the Pool is closed for 
the season.  The disadvantage is that operating money will be spend unnecessarily. 
Estimated cost: $100,000 (PW Staff $30,000, Gas electricity: $18,000, O & M: $52,000) 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RFD#: CC-2020-40 I Date: April 21, 2020 
Meeting#: CM042720 I Originator: Chris Cvik, CAO 

RFD TITLE: Letter of Support - Saulteau First Nations Land Transfer 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council approves sending a Letter of Support to the Province on the land 
selection by the Saulteau First Nation within the District of Hudson's Hope 
municipal boundary. 

BACKGROUND: 

Mayor Heiberg, Councillor Miller, and the CAO participated in a call on April 21, 2020, 
with Saulteau First Nations and the Ministry of Indigenous Relations and 
Reconciliation. The purpose of the call was to review Treaty Land Entitlement (TLE) 
and Tripartite Land Agreement (TLA) land selections by the Saulteau First Nations and, 
in particular, land transfers in and near the District of Hudson's Hope. 

DISCUSSION: 

There is one proposed land transfer from the Crown to the Saulteau First Nations 
within the District Boundary. It is a 12.7 ha parcel located directly beside the North end 
of the District's Light Industrial Subdivision along Highway 29. The selection would be 
TLA land, meaning the Crown would transfer the land as Fee Simple. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Map of Saulteau TLA land selection within the District boundaries. 

Chris Cvik, CAO 
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Saulteau First Nations 
TLE and sue-c Agreements 

Saulteau has,-selected 49 
---- land parcels.for TLE (17) and 
S·i~e-C Agreement (32) 
T:LA total == 6339.62 ha 
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OUTSTANDING FOLLOW-UP ITEMS OVER THE PAST QUARTER 
Current Quarter:   items shown whether ‘open’ or ‘closed’ 
Prior to Current Quarter:   only ‘open’ items will be shown

AGENDA 
ITEM RESOLUTION DEPT STATUS 

APRIL 14, 2020 
SR1 SWIMMING POOL FEES 

DISABLED PERSONS RATE 
THAT Council not approve the request for the 

addition of a reduction in the pool admission rate 
for disabled persons; and 

THAT Administration communicate the above 
resolution to the resident who made the inquiry. 

Admin Complete 

B1 BYLAW NO. 907, 2020 – CEMETERY MANAGEMENT 
THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw No. 907, 
2020 Cemetery Management be adopted as of April 

14, 2020. 

Admin/PW Complete 

B2 BYLAW NO. 912, 2020 – ROAD CLOSURE 
BECKMAN ROAD 

THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw No. 912, 
2020 Road Closure – Beckman Road be adopted as 

of April 14, 2020. 

Admin Complete 

B3 BYLAW NO. 916, 2020 – AMENDMENT TO BYLAW 
NO. 911, 2019, DA THOMAS ROAD CLOSURE 

THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw No. 916, 
2020, Amendment to Bylaw No. 911, 2019 Road 

Closure – DA Thomas Road be adopted as of April 
14, 2020. 

Admin Complete 

C5 WOUNDED WARRIORS DONATION REQUEST 
THAT Council approve advertising in four (4) issues 
of the Wounded Warriors quarterly magazine for 

the Regular Business Card size for $625.00 plus GST. 

Admin Complete 

C6 PROCLAMATION – MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS 
AWARENESS MONTH 

The Mayor proclaimed the month of May 2020 as 
“Multiple Sclerosis Awareness Month” and the 

Multiple Sclerosis flag will be flown in the District 
during May 2020. 

Admin Complete 

C7 PROCLAMATION – PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 
MAY 17-23,2020 

The Mayor proclaimed the week of May 17-23, 
2020 as “Public Works Week”. 

Admin/Public Works Complete 
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MARCH 23, 2020 
SR4 WATER VALVES AND HYDRANTS REPLACEMENT 

– TENDER EVALUATION AND AWARD
THAT Council accept the bid received from Cutting 

Edge Projects Ltd. for the replacement of Water 
Valves and Hydrants; and 

THAT Council approve awarding the Water Valves 
and Hydrants Replacement contract to Cutting Edge 

Projects Ltd. and authorize the Mayor and CAO to 
sign the contract subject to Council approval of the 

2020 Capital Budget. 

Public Works Complete 

SR5 BEATTIE LIFT STATION UPGRADE - TENDER 
EVALUATION AND AWARD 

THAT Council accept the bid received from 
Canadian Western Mechanical Ltd. for the upgrade 

of the Beattie Lift Station; and 
THAT Council approve awarding the Beattie Lift 
Station upgrade contract to Canadian Western 

Mechanical Ltd. and authorize the Mayor and CAO 
to sign the contract, subject to Council approval of 

the 2020 Capital Budget. 

Public Works Complete 

SR3 2019 VOLUTEER AND COMPOSITE FIRE 
DEPARTMENTS EQUIPMENT AND TRAINING 
GRANT CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

THAT Council approve the expenditure of the 
$23,699.20 to purchase the equipment as approved 

in the 2019 Volunteer and Composite Fire 
Departments Equipment and Training Grant 

application. 

Protective Equipment 
ordered, 
awaiting 
delivery 

SR2 LUCAS SUBDIVISION MARKETING PLAN 
REPORT NO. 4 

THAT Council reject both RFP proposals received for 
Real Estate Services – Lucas Subdivision; 

THAT Council direct Administration to negotiate a 
contract with Nicole Gillis for marketing the 

seventeen (17) District owned lots in the Lucas 
Subdivision; 

THAT Council continue to support a $7,500 
marketing budget to assist in the sale of the 

seventeen (17) lots. 

Admin Complete 

B2 BYLAW NO. 914, 2020 – REVITALIZATION TAX 
EXEMPTION – LUCAS SUBDIVISION 

THAT Bylaw No. 914, 2020 Revitalization Tax 
Exemption – Lucas Subdivision be adopted as of 

March 23, 2020. 

Admin Complete 
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NB2 DARYL JOHNSON – MANUFACTURED HOME 
PARK REZONING 

THAT Staff research the request from Daryl Johnson 
for amending the zoning for the Manufactured 

Home Park to include Recreational Vehicles as a 
permitted use. 

Admin Report 
Completed for 

April 27/20 
Council Mtg 

NB3 BC HYDRO – LETTER OF APPRECIATION 
RE DONATED WOOD 

THAT Staff draft a letter of appreciation for the 
wood that BC Hydro donated to the District. 

Admin Complete 

MARCH 11, 2020 
SR1 WATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE 

RFP EVALUATION AND AWARD 
THAT Council accept the proposal for the Design 
Build received from The Industra Group for the 

upgrade of the Water Treatment Plant.” 
THAT Council approve the award of the Design Build 

contract to The Industra Group and authorize the 
Mayor and CAO to sign a contract with The Industra 

Group, subject to budget approval by BC Hydro. 

Public Works Complete 

MARCH 9, 2020 
SR2 GROUNDWATER PROTECTION PLAN 

THAT Council appoint Councillor Miller and 
Councillor Quibell to the Groundwater Protection 

Plan – Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). 

Admin Complete 

SR4 TRANSFER SITE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
THAT Council approve entering into an agreement 

with Kevin Howard Contracting for the maintenance 
of the Transfer Site for three (3) years commencing 

March 27, 2020 and expiring March 26, 2023. 

THAT Council waive the Purchasing Policy and 
approve a sole source contract to Kevin Howard 

Contracting. 

Public Works Complete 

B1 BYLAW NO. 915, 2020 – FEES AND CHARGES 
THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw No. 915, 
2020 Fees and Charges be adopted as of March 9, 

2020. 

Admin Complete 

C2 2020 NORTHEAST BC COMMUNITY COAL & 
ENERGY FORUM 

THAT Council authorize two (2) members of Council 
to attend the 2020 Northeast BC Community Coal & 

Energy Forum being held in Chetwynd on 
September 9 & 10, 2020. 

Admin Cancelled due 
to COVID 19 
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C4 CONCRETE TOTEMS 
THAT Council authorize up to $300 to be included in 
the 2020 budget for the replacement of a plaque on 

the concrete totems located at the Peace River 
Bridge. 

Admin Complete 

FEBRUARY 24, 2020 
SR1 OPERATION OF THE COMMUNITY HALL 

1. That effective March 1, 2020, Council approves
the District of Hudson’s Hope assume the 

responsibility for the maintenance and 
operation of the Community Hall; 

2. That Council approves that the District negotiate
a user agreement with the District of Hudson’s
Hope Community Club for the operation of the

kitchen; and 
3. That Council direct Administration to work with

the Hudson’s Hope Lions Club on a Lease 
Agreement for Council’s consideration on the 
continued use of space within the Community 

Hall by the Lions. 

Admin Report – April 
27/20 Agenda 

SR2 THE OLDER FOLKS CLUB 
1.That Council approve amending the lease

agreement between the District of Hudson’s Hope 
and the Hudson’s Hope New Horizons Society to 
reflect the new Club known as “The Older Folks 

Club”; and 
2.That Council approve a new five-year lease

agreement with The Older Folks Club from April 1, 
2019 - March 31, 2024; and 

3.That Council approve the Service Provider
Agreement between the District of Hudson’s Hope 
and The Older Folks Club dated February 24, 2020, 

in respect to liability coverage through the 
Municipal Insurance Association of British 

Columbia. 

Admin Complete 

SR3 DISTRICT PROPERTY – SALE TO BC HYDRO 
(BECKMAN ROAD) 

1. That Council approve the Site C Project –
Purchase and Sale Agreement for Beckman Road; 

and 
2. That Council authorize the CAO to execute the

Purchase and Sale Agreement for Beckman Road on 
behalf of the District of Hudson’s Hope. 

Admin Complete 

SR4 BEATTIE LIFT STATION UPGRADE 
GRANT APPLICATION 

1. THAT Council approves a grant application to be
made for the Green Infrastructure Fund for

Public Works Complete 
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upgrades to the Beattie Lift Station (over ground 
valve chamber);  and 

2. THAT Council will consider the costs of the
project in conjunction with the preparation of the 

2020 Capital Budget. 

B1 BYLAW NO. 913, 2020 – DL148 ROAD CLOSURE 
THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Bylaw No. 913, 

2020, Road Closure – DL148 be adopted as of 
February 24, 2020 

Admin Complete 

C1 COMMUNITY HALL UPDATE 
THAT Staff send a letter to the Hudson’s Hope 

Community Club advising that Council reviewed and 
discussed their letter dated February 12, 2020 and 

that the replacement of the freezer and refrigerator 
that are located in the Community Hall and that are 
the property of the District be referred to the 2020 

budget discussions. 

Admin Complete 

FEBRUARY 10, 2020 
D1 CEMETERY SIGNS 

Fay Lavallee also inquired whether a new sign could 
be installed at the cemeteries as the existing sign is 

small and hard to see. 

PW 

C2 HUDSON’S HOPE 
NEW HORIZONS SENIORS SOCIETY 

That Council authorize Staff to determine whether 
the new The Older Folks Club can replace the 

Hudson’s Hope New Horizons Seniors Society on the 
lease that the Hudson’s Hope New Horizons Seniors 

Society currently holds with the District. 

Admin Complete 

C1 RETAIL CANNABIS SALES 
THAT Staff respond to D. Lepine’s request regarding 

Cannabis Retail Sales in Hudson’s Hope and a) 
explain the history associated with the District’s 

Zoning Bylaw;  and b)  outline the process required 
for a request for a zoning bylaw amendment. 

Admin Complete 

C3 DOUBLE H SADDLE CLUB 
LETTER OF SUPPORT 

THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope provide a letter 
of support for the Double H Saddle Club’s grant 
application for Northern Development Initiative 

Trust’s Community Halls and Recreation Facilities 
grant. 

Admin Complete 
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C4 GRANT WRITER 
Received for discussion in conjunction with Item 

C10 – PRRD 2020 Economic Development Budget. 
Council supported a contribution of up to $5,000. 

Admin Complete 
(Certified 

Resolution 
sent to PRRD) 

C6 PEACE RIVER LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ASSOCIATION DINNER MEETING 

THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope authorize any 
Council member to attend the Peace River Local 

Government Association Dinner Meeting being held 
in Tumbler Ridge on March 26, 2020. 

Admin Cancelled due 
to COVID 19 

C11 TENNIS / PICKLEBALL COURTS 
THAT Staff advise Kelly Newsholme that her 
proposal regarding upgrades to the tennis / 

pickleball courts will be considered during the 2020 
budget deliberations. 

Admin Complete 

JANUARY 27, 2020 COUNCIL MEETING 
SR1 RIVER OF THE PEACE METIS SOCIETY 

LETTER OF SUPPORT 
THAT Council approve the Request from the River 
of the Peace Metis Society to provide a Letter of 

Support for their Physical Literacy for Communities 
BC Initiative grant application; and 

THAT Council direct Administration to notify the 
River of the Peace Metis Society that the District 
does not have the resources available to support 

the initiatives that are being requested by the 
Society on Page 2 of their letter of request. 

Admin Complete 

SR2 PRA ANNUAL REPORT 2020 
THAT Council approve the revised 2016 – 2020 

Long-term Development Plan for use of the Peace 
River Agreement (PRA) grant funding. 

Admin Complete 

SR3 PURCHASE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 
BY BC HYDRO REPORT #5 

THAT Council approve the Site C Project – Hudson’s 
Hope Master Lands Agreement and accompanying 

sub-agreements. 

THAT Council authorize the CAO to execute the 
Master Lands Agreement and the accompanying 

sub-agreements on behalf of the District.” 

Admin Complete 
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SR4 PRE-BUDGET FOR MACDOUGALL STREET 
REHABILITATION 

THAT Council approve a pre-budget amount of 
$18,000 for the design and tender preparation for 

MacDougall Street rehabilitation form Dudley Drive 
intersection to Paquette Avenue intersection; and 
THAT the source of funding is the Sewer Reserve. 

PW Complete 

JANUARY 13, 2020 COUNCIL MEETING 
SR1 Q4 2019 RESOLUTIONS 

The CAO advised there is nothing new to report 
regarding the PSA transition from PRIS to the 

Library. 
Staff to draft a letter of response regarding Lynx 

Creek pavement. 

Admin/PW PRiS – In 
Progress 

Complete 

SR2 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY (GRANT-IN-AID) 
That Council approve the Financial Assistance Grant 

Policy 001/20. 

Admin Complete 

SR3 Light Industrial Subdivision 
That Council approve the recommendation from 
the Light Industrial Steering Committee to direct 

award a consulting services contract to Urban 
Systems and to proceed with hiring a geotechnical 

company and a survey company to undertake 
detailed design work, including the Geotech and 

Survey work under the management of Urban 
Systems. 

Admin/Public Works Complete 

SR4 LUCAS SUBDIVISION – MARKETING PLAN #2 
That Council approve the Request for Proposal for 

the District of Hudson’s Hope Real Estate Services – 
Lucas Subdivision. 

Admin Complete 

SR5 PURCHASE OF DISTRICT OWNED PROPERTY 
BY BC HYDRO – REPORT #4 

THAT Council rescind the following resolution: 
1.That Council approve the sale of Lot 6, Section
19, Township 81, Range 25, West of the 6th

Meridian, PRRD Plan 17881 and Lot A, Section 19,
Township 81, Range 25, West of the 6th Meridian,
PRRD Plan 27673 for $315,000.

2.That Council authorize the CAO to sign the
Purchase Agreements for Lot 6 and Lot A and the
two additional properties Library SRW for $17,500
and the Alwin Holland Park licence for $25,900 on
behalf of the District.

Admin Complete 
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3.That Council release the resolution on the sale of
District property to the Public Agenda, pending
approval from BC Hydro to share the information.

THAT Council approve the Lease Agreement for Lot 
6, Section 19, Township 81, Range 25, west of the 
Meridian, PRRD Plan 17881; 

THAT Council approve the License Agreement for 
Block A of the North East ¼ Section 19 Township 81 
Range 25 West of the 6th Meridian Peace River 
District Except Plan H626;  PID:  011-763-418, 
$10,000; 

THAT Council authorize the CAO to sign the Lease 
and License Agreements on behalf of the District; 

THAT Council release the resolution on the sale of 
District property to the Public Agenda. 

SR6 FIRE INSPECTION SYSTEM POLICY 
That Council approve the Fire Inspection System 

Policy 002, 2020 for the District of Hudson’s Hope; 
and 

THAT Council rescind the Fire Safety Inspection 
Policy dated March 12, 2002. 

Admin/Protective Complete 

SR7 FIRE DEPARTMENT SERVICE LEVEL POLICY 
That Council approve the District of Hudson’s Hope 
Fire Department Service Level Policy 003, 2020 for 

the District of Hudson’s Hope. 

Admin/Protective Complete 

SR8 NORTHERN DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
GRANT APPLICATION WINTER CARNIVAL 

THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope supports the 
application to Northern Development Initiative 
Trust for a grant of up to $2,500 for the Winter 

Carnival from the “Fabulous Festivals and Events 
Fund. 

Admin Complete 

SR9 LOCAL GOVERNMENT INFRASTRUCTURE 
PLANNING GRANT PROGRAM 

THAT Council approve the application for the BC 
Local Government Infrastructure Planning Grant 

Program in support of the continuing development 
of the District’s Asset Management Program. 

Admin/PW Complete 
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SR10 NORTH CENTRAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ASSOCIATION –AGM 

Mayor Heiberg and Councillor Gibbs confirmed 
their attendance; remaining Councillors interested 

in attending to advise the Corporate Officer by 
Friday, January 31, 2020. 

THAT Council approve registration and travel costs 
for Council members interested in attending the 

North Central Local Government Association 
Annual General Meeting being held in Prince 

George on May 13 - 15, 2020. 

Admin Cancelled due 
to COVID19 

SR12 SCHOOL DISTRICT #60 – BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
ANNUAL JOINT MEETING 

THAT Council approve a) hosting the School District 
#60 Board of Trustees Annual Joint Meeting in 

Hudson’s Hope in the spring of 2020;  and b) the 
District will provide dinner for the function. 

Admin Cancelled due 
to COVID19 

C2 PROPOSED MUSIC FESTIVAL 
THAT Staff contact Ben Waechter, Life Cycle Events, 
to request that he survey the residents in the area 

who would be affected by the noise level if the 
music festival is approved and that he report the 

results to the District. 

Admin Contacted B. 
Waechter, no 
further 
response 

C5 RISK CONTROL SURVEY – MUNICIPAL INSURANCE 
ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 

The Manager Public Works advised that the outside 
concrete entrance to Council Chambers poses a 

tripping hazard and will be fixed once the weather 
warms up;  and 2)  barb wire fencing along the 

entire front of the yard will need to be replaced at 
the Public Works Facility. 

PW 

C6 COUNCIL OF FOREST INDUSTRIES - 2020 
THAT Council approve the registration and travel 
costs for two members of Council to attend the 

Council of Forest Industries 2020 Convention being 
held in Prince George on April 1 – 3, 2020. 

Admin Cancelled due 
to COVID19 

CR1 Cyber Hacking 
Mayor Heiberg advised that the City of Dawson 
Creek was recently subject to a cyber attack and 

that the District of Hudson’s Hope is in the process 
of obtaining cyber insurance and that Staff are 

currently checking to see whether the District is 
properly insured for a similar risk. 

Admin Complete 
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NB1 Hudson’s Hope Health Care and Housing Society – 
Land Transfer 

THAT Council approve the transfer of PID:  011-
373-601; Lot 1 Section 13 Township 81 Range 26

West of 6th Meridian Peace River District Plan
PGP17871 from the District of Hudson’s Hope to 

the Hudson’s Hope Health Care and Housing 
Society in support of the Society’s proposed 

supportive living facility. 

Admin Complete 

ITEMS CARRIED FORWARD FROM PREVIOUS QUARTER 
DECEMBER 9, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SR1 CAPITAL PURCHASE - COMPUTERS 
THAT Council approve $10,500 from the 2019 
Contingency Fund towards the replacement of 
seven (7) computers prior to the end of 2019. 

Admin Complete 

B1 BYLAW NO, 911, 2019 
ROAD CLOSURE – DA THOMAS 

THAT the District of Hudson’s Hope Road Closure 
Bylaw No. 911, 2019, DA Thomas Road be adopted 

as of December 9, 2019. 

Admin Complete 

NOVEMBER 25, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
SR8 TRAFFIC SIGNS 

THAT Administration consider traffic sign 
replacement cost under Operating Budget to 

commence a multi-year replacement / 
management strategy for traffic signs. 

Public Works Operating 
Budget 

NOVEMBER 12, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
SR1 2019 VOLUNTEER & COMPOSITE FIRE 

DEPARTMENTS EQUIPMENT AND TRAINING 
GRANT APPLICATION 

THAT Council support the District of Hudson’s 
Hope’s 2019 Volunteer and Composite Fire 

Department’s Equipment and Training Grant 
Application and Council agrees to provide overall 

grant management. 

Protective Services Complete 
(Grant 
application 
successful) 

OCTOBER 15, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
SR9 COMMUNITY FACILITIES SURVEY RESULTS 

THAT Council refer the Community Facilities Survey 
Results Report to the Community Hall Committee. 

Recreation 
Services 

2020 Initiative 
with Asset 
Management 

SR5 PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT PROGRAM 
(HHPSA) 

That Council supports having the Library take over 
the administration of the PSA Program from PRiS 

and; 

Admin Work in 
Progress 
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That Council directs administration to 
communicate with PRiS recommending the Library 

take over administration of the PSA Program for 
the District and; 

That Council agrees to provide additional funding 
to the Library for the balance of 2019, and all of 

2020 and 2021 for administration of the PSA 
Program. 

C9 LYNX CREEK - PAVEMENT 
THAT staff assess the road condition of Lynx Creek 

subdivision with a particular focus on Reschke 
Road, Lesage Road and Chapman Road, review the 

Long-Term Capital Plan and Asset Management 
Plan, and report back to Council. 

Public Works Initial report 
to Council 
(Nov 2019) 
Monies to be 
identified in 
Capital Budget 

NB2 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
THAT the proposed draft zoning described as 

section 19 M1A Zone: Highway Light Industrial, 
sub-sections 19.1 Permitted Uses and 19.2 Zone 

Specific Regulations be provided to the Ministry of 
Transportation and Infrastructure to solicit their 
feedback on the proposed road and intersection 

design as per the map provided by Urban Systems; 
and 

THAT the proposed zoning amendments be 
referred to the Industrial Committee. 

Public Works MoTI 
conditionally 
approved to 
proceed with 
Ph-1; 

And 

Industrial 
Committee  
meeting on as-
needed basis. 

ITEMS CARRIED FORWARD FROM PREVIOUS QUARTER 
SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 – COUNCIL MEETING 

SR1 OSBORNE STREET AT CANYON DRIVE 
INTERSECTION 

That Council direct administration to install guard 
rail at the south east corner of the intersection 

along Osborne Street and Canyon Drive in 
consultation with the Ministry of Transportation; 

AND 
That Council direct administration to work with 
the Ministry of Transportation in cleaning the 

undergrowth and cutting the trees blocking the 
visibility along the Canyon Drive near the 

intersection;  AND 
That Council direct administration to consider this 

project under 2020 Capital Budget. 

Public Works 2020 Capital 
Budget item 

JULY 22, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
SR1 Social Media Content Plan 

Council approve 3 x 7 day camping passes in the 
amount of $300 as prizes for a photo contest that 

Admin Photo Contest 
Completed. 
Social Media 
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will provide the District will new photos to use for 
social media and our website and that the Social 

Media Content Plan be added to the Diary for 
budgeting purposes. 

Content Plan to 
be added to the 
Budget 

ITEMS CARRIED FORWARD FROM PREVIOUS QUARTER 
MARCH 11, 2019  COUNCIL MEETING 

SR8 Staff to research new funding model for grant in aid 
and bring back to Council prior to the 2020 

application period. 

Admin / Finance Complete 

FEBRUARY 11 2019  COUNCIL MEETING 
SR4 Staff to review the O&M Program for recreation 

assets such as the tennis courts, baseball diamonds, 
and playgrounds to ensure adequate funding is 

available to maintain these assets and that they are 
adequately reflected in out annual maintenance 

program. 

RSEC/Public Works Need to 
schedule 
meeting 

JANUARY 14, 2019  COUNCIL MEETING 
SR4 Council approves a grant application to be made for 

the Rural and Northern Communities Program for 
upgrades to Beattie Lift Station. 

PW/ADMN Application 
submitted; 
awaiting 
response 
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THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 

REPORT TO: Mayor Dave Heiberg and Council 

SUBJECT: CAO – Update Report 

DATE: April 2020  

FROM: Chris Cvik, CAO  

Some of the initiatives currently being worked or recently completed: 

• Safety – No employees are self-quarantined due to COVID-19.  Communications
continue to reiterate key messages from the province.

• Hired Public Works Manager (Gordon Davies) effective April 20, 2020.
• Meeting with Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) was held on April 15th.  Western

Water will be incorporating feedback from the meeting and sending an update out to the
Committee.

• Developed draft ‘job jar’ of additional projects for summer staff from the pool and visitor
centre to work on in Public Works if these facilities do not open and employees are still
interested in working for the District.

• Trying to determine whether the four District campgrounds will operate this season.
• Draft lease agreements completed for Council’s consideration for the Community Hall

and the Lion’s Club and Hudson’s Hope Community Club.
• Draft Development Variance Permit report for Lucas Subdivision marketing sign

completed.
• 2020 budget.

Upcoming 

• Virtual ‘Day of Mourning’ event on April 28th.
• RFP for Community Hall issued April 14th.  Closing date is May 14th at 4:00 p.m.
• Add Older Persons Club, Lions Club, and Hudson’s Hope Community Club to the

District’s Liability Insurance coverage through the Municipal Insurance Association of
British Columbia (MIABC).

_______________________________ 
Chris Cvik 
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THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 

REPORT TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Mayor and Council 

Jeanette McDougall, Corporate Officer 

April 27, 2020 

CORPORATE DEPARTMENT- MONTHLY UPDATE 

PURPOSE 

To provide Council with an update for the Corporate Department. 

INFORMATION 

• Bylaws ► Cemetery Management: Adopted April 14, 2020 ► Zoning Bylaw Consolidation: In progress ► Bylaw Index - conversion to Excel: In progress 

• DropBox - Office Location ► Dropbox being installed inside the Office front door so that the Public can drop off 
licence plates, property tax payments, keys, etc. during Office closure due to 
COVID19; will also be used for after Office hours under normal circumstances. 

• Adobe Software Inventory ► In Progress 

• Summer Students ► Organized applications for Swimming Pool & Visitor Centre positions 

• School District No. 60 - Annual Joint Board Meeting 2020 ► Cancelled due to COVID19 

• Conferences I Education / Training ► Records Management Webinar - September 2020: J. McDougall, A. Martin ► Safety Committee Conference - November 2020: A. Martin ► ICBC Training - ongoing: M. Cryderman 

ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS: 

Chns Cvik, CAO 

nette McDougall, Corporate Officer 
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THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 

REPORT TO: Mayor and Council 

SUBJECT:  Protective Services Monthly Update 

DATE: 27 April 2020 

FROM: Robert Norton, Director of Protective Services 

INFORMATION: 
This report is a synopsis of the activities of the various branches of the Protective Services 
Department. 

Fire Department 

Year to date the department has responded to 30 calls for service. 

Brush Fire 5 
Burning Complaint 3 
Carbon Monoxide Detector Alarm 2 
First Responder 9 
Motor Vehicle Incidents 5 
False Alarms 3 
Hazardous Materials 1 
Public Service 2 
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Hudson’s Hope Fire Rescue continues to closely monitor BC Emergency Health Services policies 
and protocols for Covid-19 response and have implemented best practices within medical 
responses to ensure the health and safety of our responders and patients. 

Changes to procedures include limiting fire department first responder response to only high 
acuity calls based on provincial recommendations, limiting the number of responders, 
increased personal protective equipment requirements and very robust cleaning routines of 
equipment and vehicles post-response. 

A open burning prohibition has been issued for the District of Hudson’s Hope which restricts 
Category 2 and 3 open burning, burn barrels as well as fireworks.  This prohibition does not 
include campfires which are still permitted.  This prohibition was placed into effect to ensure air 
quality during the Covid-19 event as well as reduce the demands on local fire response as well 
as BC Wildfire Service. 

The additional structural protection equipment purchased with the funds from the 2019 
Volunteer and Composite Fire Departments Equipment and Training Grant program have 
arrived and are being placed into service. 

Emergency Preparedness 

The Northeast BC (NEBC) Emergency and Public Alert System continues to be advertised 
throughout the Peace through a variety of venues including print, radio, billboards, and 
attendance at trade shows. The District of Hudson’s Hope continues to promote the system on 
our Facebook page, website, PSA, and the Bulletin. To date there are 1091 subscribers within 
the Peace including 128 within the Hudson’s Hope area. To ensure that new residents to the 
area are aware of the program, the District has worked with BC Hydro to include information 
into their new employee orientations for local facilities. This information describes the merits of 
the NEBC Emergency and Public Alert system, as well as information on how to sign up. 

One resident of Hudson’s Hope is now undertaking the training required to become a member 
of the Fort St John Emergency Social Services team.  This will allow the team member to take 
part in emergency social services events throughout the region and will provide a trained local 
team member in the event that emergency social services need to be delivered within the 
District. 

__________________________ 
Robert Norton, 
Director of Protective Services 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RFD#: CC-2020-32 I Date: April 16, 2020 
Meeting#: CM042720 I Originator: Chris Cvik 
RFD TITLE: 2020 Adoption of Annual Financial Plan (2020 - 2024) 

RECOMMENDATION/ RESOLUTION: 

1. That Council approve First, Second, and Third Reading to Bylaw No. 917, 2020 
- A Bylaw to Adopt a Financial Plan for 2020 - 2024. 

BACKGROUND: 

All municipalities must adopt a property tax bylaw each year. The property tax bylaw 
must be adopted after the annual budget (financial plan) has been approved by Council. 
The rationale is that based on the tax revenue requirements in the annual budget, the 
District will set its' municipal tax rates to raise the required revenue from the nine different 
classes of property. The annual tax rate bylaw must be adopted before May 15th of each 
year. 

The Planning period for the Financial Plan must include the current fiscal year and the 
next four fiscal years (five-year plan). In addition to the financial information, the plan 
must include objectives and policies for the fiscal year regarding distribution of the 
funding sources, the distribution of property taxes amongst the various property classes, 
and the use of any permissive tax exemptions. 

DISCUSSION: 

Council received the annual Operations budget for discussion on March 9, 2020, and the 
annual Capital budget for discussion on March 23, 2020. Since the presentation, 
COVID-19 occurred. As a result, Administration did not proceed with the 2% property 
tax increase that was proposed and kept the tax rate the same as 2019. Please not that 
while the municipal rate is the same, the amount requisitioned from the Peace River 
Regional District for such services as 911, Solid Waste, and the Peace River Regional 
Hospital District has increased. 

FINANCIAL: 

The proposed 2020 budget for the District of Hudson's Hope is $8,940,401. This is 
based on the combined Operating Budget of $6,739,886 and Capital Budget of 
$2,200,515. 
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The overall property tax requisition for 2020 is $2,423,180 of which $346,868 is the 
residential requisition. 

For comparative purposes, the 2019 budget was $8,915,338 and the 2018 budget was 
$8,375,376. The overall property tax requisition in 2019 was $2,079,057 of which 
$347,459 was the residential requisition so residential taxes decreased slightly in 2020. 

OTHER: 

Prior to adopting the financial plan, the District must undertake public consultation. 
The level of public consultation is not defined in legislation, but should at a minimum 
provide for residents in Hudson's Hope the opportunity to review, comment, and pose 
questions at a local government meeting. With COVID-19 social distancing safety 
precautions in effect, Administration will issue a PSA to notify residents about the 
annual financial plan and to direct them to a location on our website where they can 
review the plan and provide the date when the plan will be back at Council if they wish 
to pose questions. 

Attachment(s) 

1. Bylaw No. 917, 2020 - District of Hudson's Hope Five Year Financial Plan (2020 
- 2024). 

2. Attachment B - 2020 Financial Plan Summary. 

Report Approved by: 
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BYLAW NO. 917, 2020 

A Bylaw to Adopt a Financial Plan for 2020 to 2024 

WHEREAS section 165 of the Community Charter requires the adoption of an annual financial plan by 
bylaw and the financial plan is to include the current year plus the following 4 years; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the District of Hudson's Hope, in open public meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 

This Bylaw shall be cited as the "Annual Financial Plan Bylaw No. 917, 2020.". 

2. Schedule "A" which is attached to and forms part of this Bylaw, is adopted as the Financial Plan of 
the District of Hudson's Hope for the years 2020 to 2024. 

3. Schedule "B" which is attached to and forms part of this Bylaw, is adopted as the Statement of 
Objectives and Policies of the District of Hudson's Hope for the years 2020 to 2024. 

4. Annual Financial Plan Bylaw No. 905, 2019, is hereby repealed. 

Read a First Time on this 27 day of April, 2020. 
Read a Second Time on this 27 day of April, 2020. 
Read a Third Time on this 27 day of April, 2020. 
Adoption of Bylaw on this_ day of May, 2020. 

Dave Heiberg, Mayor Jeanette McDougall, Corporate Officer 

Certified a true copy of Bylaw No 917, 2020 
this __ day of May 2020. 

Corporate Officer 
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BYLAW No. 917, 2020 - Schedule A 

General Operations 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
General Revenue 

WaterO&M 252,405 - 257,453 - 262,602 - 267,854 - 273,211 
Water Utility Fund 1,000 - 1,020 - 1,040 - 1,061 - 1,082 
SewerO&M 197,605 - 201,557 - 205,588 - 209,700 - 213,894 
Sewer Utility Fund 5,678 - 5,792 - 5,907 - 6,026 - 6,146 
Property Taxes 2,423,180 - 3,357,575 - 3,437,033 - 3,522,856 - 3,605,489 
Grants in Lieu 1,769,958 - 1,805,357 - 1,841,464 - 1,878,294 - 1,915,859 
Grants Other 1,539,249 - 835,465 - 840,148 - 840,148 - 845,056 
General Government Services 51,000 - 52,020 - 53,060 - 54,122 - 55,204 
ICBC 122,761 - 125,216 - 127,721 - 130,275 - 132,880 
Protective Services 19,500 - 19,890 - 20,288 - 20,694 - 21,107 
Bylaw/Lands 8,750 - 8,925 - 9,104 - 9,286 - 9,471 
Public Works 14,000 - 14,000 - 14,000 - 14,000 - 14,000 
Asset Management 60,000 
Environmental & Public Health 88,300 97,736 99,691 101,685 103,719 
Recreation 185,000 - 188,700 - 192,474 - 196,323 - 200,250 
EDO 1,500 - 1,530 - 1,561 - 1,592 - 1,624 
General Operations Revenue -$ 6,739,886 -$ 6,776,764 -$6,912,299 -$ 7,050,545 -$ 7,191,556 

General Expenditure 

Water 253,405 258,473 263,643 268,915 274,294 
Sewer 191,956 195,795 199,711 203,705 207,779 
Legislative 152,000 155,040 158,141 161,304 164,530 
Grants in Aid to Cmty 50,700 51,714 52,748 53,803 54,879 
GGS 1,321,701 1,348,135 1,375,098 1,402,600 1,430,652 
ICBC 70,670 72,083 73,525 74,996 76,495 
Protective Services 334,700 341,394 348,222 355,186 362,290 
Bylaw/Lands 68,065 69,426 70,815 72,231 73,676 
Public Works 1,634,297 1,666,983 1,700,323 1,734,329 1,769,016 
Asset Management 96,000 
Environmental & Public Health 66,400 67,728 69,083 70,464 71,873 
Recreation 942,185 961,029 980,249 999,854 1,019,851 
EDO/Lands 40,500 41,310 42,136 42,979 43,839 
Trans to Cemetery 300 306 312 318 325 
Tr To Gen Optg M & E Office Fund 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 
Trans to DPW M & E Fund 185,507 189,217 193,001 196,862 200,799 
Trans to Protective Serv Fund 126,100 128,622 131,194 133,818 136,495 
Trans to Community Hall Fund 30,000 30,600 31,212 31,836 32,473 
Trans to Land 498,400 508,368 518,535 528,906 539,484 
to/(-)fr General Fund to Capital (PRA) 672,000 685,440 699,149 713,132 727,394 
Total General Operations Expense $ 6,739,886 $ 6,776,764 $6,912,299 $ 7,050,545 $ 7,191,556 

Surplus/ (-)deficit: must be 0 
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BYLAW No. 917, 2020 - Schedule A 

CAPITAL OPERATIONS 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

Transfer from Funds, Reserves; 
Capital Revenue 

Water Capital Reserve -2,000 -162,000 -600,000 -1,050,000 -1,100,000 
Sewer Capital Reserve -18,000 -200,000 -300,000 -200,000 -400,000 
Mach & Equip Capital Reserve -728,500 -1,475,000 -1,524,500 -1,187,500 -1,382,500 
Protective Services Reserve -18,800 -7500 -7500 -7500 -7500 
Land Capital Reserve -156,000 0 0 0 0 
NDIT Grant: Light Industrial -144,000 
Transfers fr Gen Optg Fund (PRA) -672,000 
Transfers fr Surplus Revenue 2019 -461,215 
Total Capital Revenue -$ 2,200,515 -$ 1,844,500 -$ 2,432,000 -$ 2,445,000 -$ 2,890,000 

Capital Operations Expenditure 

Water Capital Expense 334,550 162,000 600,000 1,050,000 1,100,000 
Sewer Capital Expense 573,665 200,000 300,000 200,000 400,000 
General Capital Expense 1,292,300 1,482,500 1,532,000 1,195,000 1,390,000 

Total Capital Operations Expense $ 2,200,515 $ 1,844,500 $2,432,000 $ 2,445,000 $ 2,890,000 
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BYLAW No. 917, 2020 - Schedule B 

In accordance with Section 165(3.1) of the Community Charter, the Town is required to 
include in the Five-Year Financial Plan, objectives and policies regarding each of the 
following: 

1. The proportion of total revenue that comes from each of the funding sources 
described in Section 165(7) of the Community Charter, 

2. The distribution of property taxes among the property classes, and 
3. The use of permissive tax exemptions. 

Funding Sources 
Table 1 shows the proportion of total revenue proposed to be raised from each funding 
source in 2020. 

For the 2020 fiscal year Property taxes form the largest portion of revenue. As a . 
revenue source, property taxation offers a number of advantages, for example, it is 
simple to administer and it is fairly easy for residents to understand. It offers a stable 
and reliable source of revenue for services that are difficult or undesirable to fund on a 
user-pay basis. These include services such as general administration, fire protection, 
police services, bylaw enforcement and street lighting. 

Grants in Lieu is the second largest source of revenue with Grant in Lieu payments from 
BC Hydro Dam/Reservoir payments accounting for the largest percentage. 

The third largest source of Revenue is Other Grants which includes the Peace River 
Agreement (PRA) Grant (formerly known as Fair Share and the Community Works Fund 
(Gas Tax). 

Objective 
• To use Peace River Agreement Funding on Capital and not Operating expenses. 
• Toi increase the proportion of revenue that is received from user fees and charges 

to ensure that users of the service are not being subsidized by non-users 
especially with respect to water and sewer services. 

Policies 
• The District of Hudson's Hope will review all user fee levels to ensure they are 

adequately meeting both the capital and delivery costs of the service. 
• The District will look at market comparables to see how competitive the District 

is. 

Council Agenda - April 27, 2020 Page 118 of 159



Table 1: Sources of Revenue 

REVENUE SOURCE 2020 
DOLLAR 
VALUE 

Grants on Lieu 
Property Taxes 
Grants others 
User Fees & Charges 
Other sources 
Parcel Tax 

-1,769,958 
-2,423, 180 
-1,539,249 
-456,688 
-543,597 

-7,214 

%OF 
REVENUE 

26.26 
35.95 
22.84 
6.78 
8.07 
0.11 

TOTAL -6,739,886 100.00 

Distribution of Property Tax Rates 

Table 2 outlines the distribution of property taxes among the property classes. The 
Utilities property class provides the largest proportion of property tax revenue. This is 
appropriate as this class forms the largest portion of the assessment base. 

Objectives 
• To have Property Class 2 close to the Provincial Average. 
• To slowly raise the percentage of property tax raised from Class 1 - Residential.\ 
• Maintain the property tax rate for Business and Other (Class 6), Light Industry 

(Class 5) and Major Industrial (Class 4) at the current rate. 

Policies 
• To compare the District against other municipalities within the Peace River 

Regional District and municipalities of similar size to see the percentage of 
property tax paid by each Property Class. 

• Continue to maintain and encourage economic development initiatives designed 
to attract more Light Industrial business to invest in the community. New 
investment from this area will help provide more revenue for the District. 

• Regularly review and compare the District's distributions of tax burden relative to 
other BC municipalities. 
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Table 2: Distribution of Property Tax Rates 

DOLLAR %OF 
PROPERTY CLASS 2020 VALUE REVENUE 
Utilities -1,570,034 69.35 
Residential -346,868 15.32 
Business & Other -141,705 6.26 
Light Industry -181,510 8.02 
Major Industry -15,587 0.69 
Farmland -7,562 0.33 
Recreation/non-profit -684 0.03 

TOTAL -2,263,950 100.00 
Other Taxes -159,230 

Property Tax total -2,423,180 

Permissive Tax Exemptions 

The District of Hudson's Hope has an existing permissive tax exemption (Bylaw No. 
908, 2019) which guides the administration and approval of permissive tax exemptions. 
Some of the eligibility criteria for permissive tax exemptions that are outlined in the 
policy include the following: 

• The tax exemption must demonstrate benefit to the community and residents of 
District of Hudson's Hope by enhancing the quality of life (economically, socially, 
and culturally) within the community. 

• The goals, policies and principles of the organization receiving the exemption 
must not be inconsistent or in conflict with those of the District of Hudson's Hope. 

• The organization receiving the exemption must be a registered non-profit society, 
as the support of the municipality will not be used for commercial and private 
gain. 

• Permissive tax exemptions will be considered in conjunction with: (a) other 
assistance being provided by the District; (b) the potential demands for the 
District services or infrastructure arising from the property; and (c) the amount of 
revenue that the District will lose if the exemption is granted. 

Objective 
• Over the next 5 years the District of Hudson's Hope will continue with its current 

bylaw to provide permissive tax exemptions to non-profit societies. 

Policies 
• To continue with encouraging the development of non-profit societies that 

provide services (as per its Property Tax Exemption Bylaw) to the communities 
by its offering of its Insurance Expansion Coverage Policy. 

• To ensure that applicants continue to be eligible and qualify under the District's 
tax exemption guidelines. 
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Attachment B - 2020 Financial Plan Summary 
2020 ANNUAL BUDGET 

REVENUE 2020 BUDGET 
Fund 01: General 
Dept 10: General Gov Serv 
Activity 1000: Taxes 
Account: Revenue Total Activity 1000: Taxes: 1000 -2,423,180 
Activity 1001: Grants in Lieu of Taxes 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1001 -1,769,958 
Activity 1003: Grants 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1003 -1,539,249 
Activity 1005: General Government Services 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1005 -51,000 
Activity 1006: Other Govt Serv: ICBC 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1006 -122,761 
Activity 1009: Other Government Services 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1009 0 -3,191,333 
Activity 1200: Fire Department 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1200 -19,500 
Activity 1300: Bylaw Enforcement 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1300 -5,250 
Activity 1301: Animal Control 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1301 -2,000 
Activity 1302: Building Inspection 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1302 -1,500 
Dept 14: Public Works 
Activity 1007: Administration NET Account: Revenue: 1007 -14,000 
Activity 1008: Asset Management 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1008 -60,000 
Dept 15: Environmental 
Activity 1500: Environmental NET Account: Revenue: 1500 -86,000 
Activity 1600: Public Health 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1600 -2,300 
Dept 17: Recreation - 
Activity 1700: Arena NET Account: Revenue: 1700 -24,100 
Activity 1701: Swimming Pool 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1701 -49,150 
Activity 1702: Visitor Information Center 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1702 -11,650 
Activity 1703: Curling Club 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1703 -10,000 
Activity 1704: Community Hall 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1704 -2,500 
Activity 1705: Library 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1705 -9,600 
Activity 1706: Parks 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1706 0 
Activity 1707: Campgrounds 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1707 -22,500 
Activity 1708: Special Events 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1708 -55,500 
Activity 1800: Lands 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1800 -1,000 
Activity 1900: Economic Development 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1900 -500 
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Attachment B - 2020 Financial Plan Summary 
2020 ANNUAL BUDGET 

Activity 4000: Water Treatment 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 4000 -252,405 
Activity 4001: Water Piping & Distribution 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 4001 -1,000 
Activity 4000: Water Treatment Capital 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 4000 Capital 0 
Activity 5000: Sewer Treatment 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 5000 -197,605 
Activity 5001: Sewer Piping & Distribution 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 5001 -5,678 
Activity 5000: Sewer Treatment Capital 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 5000 Capital 0 

··-·-- 
Activity 1100: Capital Projects 
Account: Revenue NET Account: Revenue: 1100 Capital 0 

TOTAL REVENUE -6,739,886 
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Attachment B - 2020 Financial Plan Summary 
2020 ANNUAL BUDGET 

- 

--· 

EXPENSES 2020 BUDGET 
Fund 01: General 
Dept 10: General Gov Serv 
Activity 1002: Legislative 

·-- 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1002 152,000 
Activity 1003: Grants 
Account: Expense Net Account: Expenses: 1003 50,700 
Activity 1005: General Government Services 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1005 2,839,008 
Activity 1006: Other Government Services 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1006 70,670 
Activity 1009: Other Government Services 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1009 0 3,191,333 
Activity 1200: Fire Department 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1200 327,650 
Activity 1201: MEP 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1201 7,050 

--·- 
Activity 1300: Bylaw Enforcement 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1300 10,200 
Activity 1301: Animal Control 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1301 40,465 
Activity 1302: Building Inspection 
~~count: Expenses NET Account: Expense: 1302 17,400 
~ept 14: Public Works 
Activity 1007: Administration NET Account: Expenses: 1007 1,202,820 
Activity 1008: Asset Management 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expense: 1008 96,000 
Activity 1400: Public Works Shop 
_Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1400 89,162 --- 
Activity 1401: Roads 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1401 322,165 
Activity 1402: Airstrip Maintenance 

·---· 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1402 20,150 
Activity 1500: Environmental 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: lS00 60,400 
Activity 1600: Public Health 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1600 6;000 
Dept 1700: Recreation 

- 
Activity 1700: Arena 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1700 87,515 
Activity 1701: Swimming Pool 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1701 228,011 
Activity 1702: Visitor Information Center 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses 1702 93,330 
Activity 1703: Curling Club Expenses 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1703 24,000 
Activity 1704: Community Hall 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1704 21,500 
Activity 1705: Library 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1705 189,814 
Activity 1706: Parks 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1706 42,900 
Activity 1707: Campgrounds 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1707 13,900 
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Attachment B - 2020 Financial Plan Summary 
2020 ANNUAL BUDGET 

-- 
Activity 1708: Special Events 

----·-- 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1708 144,507 
Activity 1709: Museum 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1709 86,708 
Activity 1711: New Horizons 
Account: Expense NET Account: Expenses: 1711 10,000 
Activity 1800: Lands 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expense: 1800 29,500 
Activity 1900: Economic Development 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1900 11,000 
Activity 4000: Water Treatment 
~~cou~t: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 4000 253,405 

--- 
Activity 4001: Water Piping & Distribution 

--- 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 4001 0 
Activity 4000: Water Treatment Capital 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 4000 Cap 0 
Activity 5000: Sewer Treatment 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 5000 191,956 

-- 
Activity 5001: Sewer Piping & Distribution 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 5001 0 
Activity 5000: Sewer Treatment Capital 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 5000 Cap 0 
Dept 80: Capital Projects 
Actjvity 1100: Capital Projects ------ 
Account: Expenses NET Account: Expenses: 1100 Cap 0 

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,739,886 

REVENUE -6,739,886 --·-- 
EXPENSES 6,739,886 ----- 

DIFFERENCE 0 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT Council approve First, Second and Third Readings of the “District of Hudson’s 
Hope Tax Rate Bylaw No. 918, 2020. 

BACKGROUND: 

Community Charter: Annual property tax bylaw 
197   (1)  Each year, after adoption of the financial plan but before May 15, a council must, by 

bylaw, impose property value taxes for the year by establishing tax rates for 
(a) the municipal revenue proposed to be raised for the year from property value

taxes, as provided in the financial plan, and
(b) the amounts to be collected for the year by means of rates established by the

municipality to meet its taxing obligations in relation to another local government or
other public body.

(2) Unless otherwise permitted by this or another Act, a property value tax under
subsection (1) must be imposed

(a)on all land and improvements in the municipality, other than land and
improvements that are exempt under this or another Act in relation to the tax, and

(b)on the basis of the assessed value of the land and improvements.
(3) For the purposes of subsection (1) (a), the bylaw may establish for each property class

(a) a single rate for all revenue to be raised, or
(b) separate rates for revenue to be raised for different purposes but, in this case, the

relationships between the different property class rates must be the same for all
purposes.

(3.1)  In relation to tax rates established for the purposes of subsection (1) (a), before 
adopting the bylaw, the council must consider the tax rates proposed for each 
property class in conjunction with the objectives and policies set out under 
section 165 (3.1) (b) [property value tax distribution] in its financial plan. 

(4) For the purposes of subsection (1) (b), for each local government or
other public body in relation to which the amounts are to be
collected, 

RFD#:      CC-2020-33 Date:   April 16, 2020 

Meeting#:  CM042720 Originator: Chris Cvik, CAO 
RFD TITLE:  Tax Rate Bylaw No. 918, 2020 
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Page 2 of 2 

(a) the bylaw must establish separate rates for each property class, and
(b) the relationships between the different property class rates must be the same

as the relationships established under subsection (3) unless otherwise
required under this or another Act.

(5) If the amount of revenue raised in any year for a body under subsection (1) (b) is
more or less than the amount that is required to meet the municipality's obligation,
the difference must be used to adjust the rate under subsection (1) (b) for the next
year.

(6) The minimum amount of tax under subsection (1) in any year on a parcel of real
property is $1.

(7) Property value taxes under subsection (1) are deemed to be imposed on January
1 of the year in which the bylaw under that subsection is adopted, unless
expressly provided otherwise by the bylaw or by the enactment under which they
are imposed.

DISCUSSION:  

Section 197 of the Community Charter requires municipalities to adopt a bylaw before May 15th 
of each year to impose property taxes. The proposed Tax Rate Bylaw is attached for Council’s 
review and will come back for adoption on May 11, 2020. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

There are no tax rate increases for 2020 for all Classes (1- Residential; 2-Utilities; 4-Major 
Industry; 5-Light Industry; 6-Business; 8-Recreation/Non-profit; 9-Farm). 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Draft copy of “District of Hudson’s Hope Tax Rate Bylaw 918, 2020”.

_________________________ 
Chris Cvik, CAO 
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DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 
Tax Rates Bylaw No. 918, 2020 

A bylaw to levy rates for municipal, regional district and regional hospital district 
purposes for 2020 

WHEREAS section 197 of the Community Charter directs the Council to adopt a bylaw, before 
May 15 in each year, to impose property value taxes, subject to the Charter, on all taxable 
land and improvements according to their assessed values; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the District of Hudson's Hope, in open public meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be cited as the "District of Hudson’s Hope Tax Rates Bylaw No. 918,
2020".

2. The following property value taxes are imposed and levied for 2020:
(a) for purposes of the District of Hudson's Hope on the assessed value of land

and improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, the tax rates
appearing in column "A" of the Schedule attached to and made part of this
Bylaw;

(b) for purposes of the Peace River Regional District on the assessed value of
land and improvements taxable for regional district purposes, the tax rates
appearing in column "B" of the Schedule attached to and made part of this
Bylaw;

(c) for the 911 emergency telephone service of the Peace River Regional
District on the assessed value of improvements taxable for regional district
purposes, the tax rates appearing in column "C" of the Schedule attached
to and made part of this Bylaw; and

(d) for purposes of the Peace River Regional Hospital District on the assessed
value of land and improvements taxable for regional hospital district purposes,
the tax rates appearing in column "D" of the Schedule attached to and made
part of this Bylaw.

3. That Tax Rate Bylaw No. 906, 2019, be repealed.

Read a First Time on this the 27th day of April, 2020 
Read a Second Time on this 27th day of April, 2020 
Read a Third Time on this 27th day of April, 2020 
Adoption of Bylaw on this        day of May, 2020 

________________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Dave Heiberg, Mayor Jeanette McDougall, Corporate Officer 

Certified a true copy of Bylaw No. 918, 2020 
this ______ day of ___________ 2020. 

Corporate Officer 
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District of Hudson's Hope 
Schedule of 2020 Tax Rates Bylaw No. 918, 2020 

Tax Rates (dollars of tax per $1,000 of taxable value) 
"A" “B” "C" "D" 

District of 
Hudson's Hope 

Peace River 
Regional 
District 

Peace River 
Regional 

District (9-1-1) 

Peace River 
Regional Hospital 

District 
Property Class 

1 Residential 3.5 0.1888 0.3265 0.4811 
2 Utilities 24.0 0.6607 1.1426 1.6840 
4 Major Industry 16.0 0.6418 1.1100 1.6359 
5 Light Industry 16 0.6418 1.1100 1.6359 
6 Business/Other 9.7 0.4625 0.7998 1.1788  

8 Recreational/ 
Non-Profit 3.0 

0.1888 0.3265 0.4811 

9 Farm 3.0 0.1888 0.3265 0.4811 
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New COVID-19 supports for businesses, local governments

NEWS RELEASE
For Immediate Release
2020FIN0020-000703
April 16, 2020

VICTORIA – The Province is providing enhanced relief for businesses by reducing most 
commercial property tax bills by an average of 25%, along with new measures to support local 
governments facing temporary revenue shortfalls as a result of COVID-19.

“We know that B.C. communities and businesses are suffering from the economic impacts of 
COVID-19,” said Carole James, Minister of Finance. “That is why our B.C. COVID-19 Action Plan 
is focused on the health and safety of British Columbians, direct support for people and 
businesses and economic recovery for our province. We are providing further support by 
making additional temporary property tax changes to provide provincewide relief for business 
and local governments to help weather the pandemic, continue to deliver the services people 
count on and be part of our province’s economic recovery.”

The Province is taking significant new steps to support B.C. businesses, non-profits and other 
organizations through the COVID-19 pandemic by:

• further reducing the school property tax rate for commercial properties to achieve an
average 25% reduction in the total property tax bill for most businesses, providing up to
$700 million in relief. This enhances the 50% reduction to the provincial school property
tax rate that was originally announced for classes 4, 5, and 6 as part of B.C.’s COVID-19
Action Plan.

• Postponing the date that late payment penalties apply for commercial properties in
classes 4,5,6,7 and 8 to Oct. 1, 2020, to give businesses and landlords more time to pay
their reduced property tax, without penalty.

Responding to key concerns from local governments, the Province is addressing cash flow and 
revenue shortfalls with new measures that provide additional support:

• authorizing local governments to borrow, interest-free, from their existing capital
reserves to help pay for operating expenses, such as employee salaries.

• delaying provincial school tax remittances until the end of the year. This will provide
significant relief to local governments facing cash flow issues.

• providing local governments greater flexibility to carry debt for an additional year.
• These measures will provide local governments with the resources to meet their

operational costs and required remittances to regional districts, regional hospital
districts, TransLink and transit authorities, BC Assessment, the Municipal Finance
Authority and other taxing authorities. This will ensure that other minor taxing
authorities can count on receiving the full amount they bill to municipalities and the
Province’s surveyor of taxes before Aug. 1, 2020.

Ministry of Finance
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
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“The COVID-19 pandemic is having significant financial impacts on all levels of government. It’s 
going to take hard work from both municipalities and the provincial government, but working 
together we will get through this,” said Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs and 
Housing. “Many local governments have already shown leadership by taking steps to help 
people and businesses and maintain services, while addressing their finances. With these new 
measures, we are giving local governments new tools as a first step to ease their financial 
burdens and that of businesses in their communities now, and as we look to recovery in the 
months to come.”

Maja Tait, Union of B.C. Municipalities president, said: “Local governments across B.C. are 
working hard to support the implementation of COVID-19 orders, while ensuring residents have 
access to the services they need in these challenging times. The measures announced today 
provide additional relief to small business and will free up funds for local government. UBCM 
will monitor the impact of these measures on the state of local governments finances, and 
work with the Province to ensure that local governments have the resources to sustain their 
communities.”

Changes to British Columbia’s property tax framework complement federal measures and build 
on the $5 billion B.C. COVID-19 Action Plan that provides income supports, tax relief and direct 
funding for people, businesses and services.

Learn More:

For more information on B.C.’s COVID-19 Action Plan, visit: 
http://news.gov.bc.ca/factsheets/bc-takes-steps-to-support-people-businesses-during-covid-19
-pandemic

For information about federal supports for businesses, visit: 
https://www.canada.ca/en/department-finance/economic-response-plan.html

For the latest medical updates, including case counts, prevention, risks and testing, visit: 
http://www.bccdc.ca/
Or follow @CDCofBC on Twitter

For provincial health officer orders, notices and guidance, visit: www.gov.bc.ca/phoguidance

For non-health related information, including financial, child care and education supports, 
travel, transportation and essential service information, visit: www.gov.bc.ca/covid19
Or call 1 888 COVID19 (1 888 268-4319) between 7:30 a.m. and 8 p.m., seven days a week.

A backgrounder follows.
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Connect with the Province of B.C. at: news.gov.bc.ca/connect

For non-health related information, visit: 
www.gov.bc.ca/covid19 
Or call 1 888 COVID19 (1 888 268-4319) 
between 7:30 a.m. and 8 p.m., seven days a 
week.

For media only: 
Ministry of Finance
Media Relations
250 213-7724

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
Media Relations
778 584-2433

Contacts:
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Changes to B.C.’s property tax framework respond to COVID-19

BACKGROUNDER
For Immediate Release
2020FIN0020-000703
April 16, 2020

Building on B.C.’s COVID-19 Action Plan, the Province is making temporary changes to B.C.’s 
property tax framework to provide financial support for businesses and local governments.

Property tax measures for local governments:

• Local governments will have the ability to borrow, interest-free, from their capital
reserve funds, freeing up billions in assets to cover temporary revenue shortfalls. They
will have up to five years to build back the reserve funds.

• Municipalities will be able to access school tax revenue collected for the Province until
the end of the year. If a local government chooses to hold onto the school property tax, it 
must first be used to pay other taxing authorities, including regional districts.

• Working closely with the Municipal Financing Authority (MFA), local governments will be
able to extend their revenue anticipation borrowing for a second year past the current
limit of one year. To minimize impacts on the MFA, the Province is asking local
governments to first use the delayed school property tax payment and their own capital
reserve funds before seeking short-term borrowing through the MFA.

• Municipalities will still be required to make all their required remittances to other taxing
authorities. Additionally, municipalities will be required to make the full annual payment
to TransLink and BC Assessment in August 2020, rather than August and December.

Property tax measures for B.C. businesses:

• Late payment penalties for commercial properties (classes 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8) will be
postponed to Oct. 1, 2020.

• The school property tax rates for classes 4, 5, and 6 were reduced by 50% in the
Province’s initial economic response to COVID-19. Further reducing the provincial school
property tax and introducing an equivalent tax reduction for classes 7 and 8 will lower
the overall commercial property tax bill for most businesses by an average of 25%.

Breakdown of tax relief for B.C. businesses:

• Major industry (property class 4)
◦ Budget 2020 mill rate: 3.72
◦ March 23 mill rate: 1.86
◦ April 16 mill rate: effectively zero
◦ Tax cut as a per cent of total tax bill: 4%

• Light industry (property class 5)
◦ Budget 2020 mill rate: 3.72
◦ March 23 mill rate: 1.86

Ministry of Finance
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
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◦ April 16 mill rate: 1.0561
◦ Tax cut as a per cent of total tax bill: 25%

• Business/other (property class 6)
◦ Budget 2020 mill rate: 3.72
◦ March 23 mill rate: 1.86
◦ April 16 mill rate: 1.1070
◦ Tax cut as a per cent of total tax bill: 25%

• Managed forest (property class 7)
◦ Budget 2020 mill rate: 1.87
◦ March 23 mill rate: 1.87
◦ April 16 mill rate: effectively zero
◦ Tax cut as a per cent of total tax bill: 20%

• Recreation and non-profit (property class 8)
◦ Budget 2020 mill rate: 2.29
◦ March 23 mill rate: 2.29
◦ April 16 mill rate: 0.7844
◦ Tax cut as a per cent of total tax bill: 25%

Changes to British Columbia’s property tax framework are in addition to measures announced 
as part of B.C.’s Action Plan to support businesses, including:

• Effective immediately, many provincial tax filing and payment deadlines are deferred to
Sept. 30, 2020.

• Businesses with a payroll over $500,000 can defer their employer health tax payments
until Sept. 30, 2020. Businesses with a payroll under this threshold are already exempt.

• Payments for provincial sales tax (PST), employer health tax, municipal and regional
district tax on short-term accommodation, carbon tax, motor fuel tax and tobacco tax are
also deferred.

• The scheduled increase to the carbon tax rate, and application of PST to e-commerce
transactions and sweetened and carbonated drinks, will be delayed.

B.C.’s COVID-19 Action Plan complements federal measures to support businesses:

• The federal government is providing up to 75% wage subsidy for qualifying businesses,
for up to three months, retroactive to March 15, 2020, to help businesses to keep and
return workers to the payroll.

• The maximum duration of the Work-Sharing program has been extended from 38 weeks
to 76 weeks.

• The Business Credit Availability Program will provide $65 billion of additional support and
credit solutions for individual businesses, including the Canada Emergency Business
Account and the Loan Guarantee for Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises.

• All businesses can defer, until Aug. 31, 2020, the payment of any income tax amounts
that become owing on or after March 18, 2020, and before September 2020. No interest
or penalties will accumulate on these amounts during this period.

• All businesses, including self-employed individuals, can defer payments of GST/HST and
customs duty until June 30, 2020.
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Connect with the Province of B.C. at: news.gov.bc.ca/connect

For non-health related information, visit: 
www.gov.bc.ca/covid19 
Or call 1 888 COVID19 (1 888 268-4319) 
between 7:30 a.m. and 8 p.m., seven days a 
week.

For media only: 
Ministry of Finance
Media Relations
250 213-7724

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
Media Relations
778 584-2433

Contacts:
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From: Dave Heiberg <mayor@hudsonshope.ca> 
Sent: April 18, 2020 8:03 AM 
To: Travous Quibell <travous@hudsonshope.ca>; Kelly Miller <kelly@hudsonshope.ca>; Leigh Summer 
<leigh@hudsonshope.ca>; Valerie Paice <valerie@hudsonshope.ca>; Patricia Markin 
<patricia@hudsonshope.ca>; Mattias Gibbs <mattias@hudsonshope.ca> 
Cc: Chris Cvik <cao@hudsonshope.ca> 
Subject: Fwd: Hudson's Hope follow up -- question from April 9th call with Minister Robinson 

Good morning all. 

On Thursday, April 9th, I raised the issue of Municipal Campsites with Minister Robinson during our 
weekly teleconference. 

Being that the Province has closed all provincial campgrounds the question was around the Provincial 
Health Authority intentions to consider a similar order with respect to municipal campsites. 

I received the attached response from the Ministry yesterday. 

I intend to bring this topic up as a Notice of Motion at our PRRD meeting this Thursday. In my opinion, it 
would be nice if the PRRD would support a regional approach, will see what other Directors have to say. 

We, as a council, will have to make a decision in the near future. I will put this topic on our next agenda 
for discussion and direction. 

Don't hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. 

Hope you all have a great weekend. 

Mayor Dave Heiberg 

mayor@hudsonshope.ca 
Cell: 250 783 0816 
Office: 250 783 9901 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "McCabe, Kate MAH:EX" <Kate.McCabe@gov.bc.ca> 
Date: April 17, 2020 at 12:19:36 PM MST 
To: Dave Heiberg <mayor@hudsonshope.ca>, Chris Cvik <cao@hudsonshope.ca> 
Cc: "Andrade, Ana MAH:EX" <Ana.Andrade@gov.bc.ca>, "Ducker, Jayne MAH:EX" 
<Jayne.Ducker@gov.bc.ca>, "Faganello, Tara MAH:EX" <Tara.Faganello@gov.bc.ca>, "Marotz, Nicola 
MAH:EX" <Nicola.Marotz@gov.bc.ca>, "Wilkins, Christina MAH:EX" <Christina.Wilkins@gov.bc.ca>, 
"EMBC PECC Director 1 EMBC:EX" <pecc.dir1@gov.bc.ca>, "EMBC PECC Operations 1 EMBC:EX" 
<pecc.ops1@gov.bc.ca>, "Bates, Stan EMBC:EX" <Stan.Bates@gov.bc.ca> 
Subject: Hudson's Hope follow up -- question from April 9th call with Minister Robinson 

This message is being forwarded to you on behalf of Nicola Marotz, Strategic Advisor, Local 
Government, Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
Dear Mayor Heiberg, 
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Thank you for Hudson's Hope participating in Minister Selina Robinson's April 9 regional call with mayors 
and chairs regarding COVID-19 issues and impacts. 

During that call, Hudson's Hope noted its municipal campgrounds and raised the issue of guidance 
regarding campgrounds and the application of public health orders. 

I am aware that some municipalities have made the choice to keep municipal campgrounds closed, 
some to delay campground openings, some are not taking reservations until the situation changes and 
others are taking reservations at a tuture specitied date. Decisions about municipal services, essential or 
other, are within the jurisdiction of the municipality so long as those services can be delivered 
consistently with legal rules such as orders of the Provincial Health Officer and the guidance and 
direction being provided during this emergency. 

Note the Provincial Health Officer's guidance on the page regarding services, essential and other 
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/safety/emergency-preparedness-response-recovery/covid-19- 
provincial-support/essential-services-covid-19: The PHO has ordered some types of businesses to close. 
Any business or service that has not been ordered to close and is also not identified on the essential 
service list may slay upen i{ lhev wn udapl their services and workplace to the orders and 
recommendations of the PHO. All organizations and services must follow all PHO Orders, Notices and 
Guidance to ensure safe operations and reduce the risk of transmission of COV/D-19. That would involve 
compliance with orders such as the order prohibiting public gatherings of 50 people or more 
https://www2 .gov. be.ca/ assets/gov /hea Ith/ a bo ut-bc-s-hea Ith-ca re-system/ office-of-the-provincial- 
hea Ith-officer /repo rts-pu bl icatio ns/ covid-19-p ho-class-o rd er-mass-gatherings. pdJ, as well as with the 
recommendations on physical distancing http://www.bccdc.ca/Hea1th-lnfo-Site/Documents/COVID19- 
Physica 1-distancinp;. pdf 

Additionally, during the current emergency, the Provincial Health Officer and the Province are 
recommending that people stay close to home and avoid non-essential travel. BC Provincial Parks have 
been closed to ensure public safety and help stop the spread of COVID-19 as many ofthe parks were a 
travel destination, becoming incredibly busy and practicing physical distancing was becoming a 
significant challenge. As well Destination BC 's social media campaign #exploreBC. .. Later. 
https://www.destinationbc.ca/content/uploads/2020/01/029 Covid19ResponseMessagingGuidance Ap 
r2.pdf is focused on helping spread the message among the tourist industry about the importance of 
preventing non-essential travel and keeping communities safe. At the same time it is recognized that 
the current emergency is a temporary measure. 

By this email, I am copying Emergency Management BC headquarters staff (and sharing with Provincial 
Health Officer staff, as appropriate) as to whether there will be any further consideration of guidance for 
campgrounds. Your municipality's emergency manager can raise issues such as the one in your email 
through Emergency Management BC's Northeast Provincial Regional Emergency Operations Centre at 
preoc5.ops1@gov.bc.ca. PREOCs hold regular calls in the regions for emergency planning/program staff 
from local governments, First Nations, and other related organizations which provide a vital chance for 
planning/program staff to hear current information, learn from what others are doing, raise issues and 
ask key operational questions. PREOCs also act as a clearing house for operational questions of all kinds 
and EMBC can find out answers that are known at this time and also advise your staff when there may 
not yet be answers. 

I hope that this information is of assistance to you. 

Sincerely, 
Nicola Marotz 
Strategic Advisor, Local Government/ Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
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